
SELAH CITY COUNCIL

6:30pm October 27, 2015
4:30pm Study Session - Planning Commission,

Chapter 10.24 Discussion



Selah City Council
Regular Meeting
Tuesday, October27, 2015
6:30pm
City Council Chambers

Mayor:
Mayor Pro Tern:
Council Members:

CITY OF SELAH

115 West Naches Avenue

Selah. Washington 98942

City Administrator:
City Attorney:
Clerk/Treasurer:

A.

B.

C.

D.

E.

F.

G.

AGENDA

Call to Order-Mayor Gawlik

Roll Call & Moment of Silence for Council Member Schmid

Pledge of Allegiance

Agenda Changes None

Public Appearances/Introductions/Presentations None

Getting To Know Our Businesses None

Communications

1. Oral

John Gawlik

Paul Overby
John Tiemey
Dave Smeback

Allen Schmid

Roy Sample
Jane Williams

Laura Ritchie

Don Wayman
Bob Noe

Dale Novobielski

This is a public meeting, if you wish to address the Council concerning any matter that is not on the agenda, you may do so
now. Please come forward to the podium, stating your name for the record. The Mayor reserves the right to place a time limit
on each person asking to be heard.

2. Written

Andrew Potter a. Selah Downtown Association Monthly Financial Report
H. Proclamations/Announcements None

I. Consent Agenda

All items listed with an asterisk (*} are considered routine by the City Councii and wiil be enacted by one motion, without
discussion. Should any Councii Member request that any item of the Consent Agenda be considered separately, that item vyill
be removed from the Consent Agenda and become a part of the regular Agenda.

Monica Lake * 1.

DaleN. * 2.

Approval of Minutes: October 13, 2015 Study Session & Council Meeting
Approval of Claims & Payroll

J. Public Hearings
Kent Catlin 1. Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 2015

K. New Business

Volunteer Park options

None

Don Wayman 1.

L. Old Business

M. Resolutions

Gary Hanna 1. Resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign an Intergovernmental Cooperation
Agreement with Franklin County Fire District #3, a municipal coiporation



Charlie Brown 2. Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Sign an Agreement with the Recreation and
Conservation Office to Receive Grant Funding for the Development of Volunteer
Park

3. Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Sign an Amendment to the City
Administrator's Employment Agreement

Dale N.

N. Ordinances

Charlie Brown 1. Ordinance Amending the 2015 Budget for the Expenditure of Hotel/Motel Sales Tax
Revenue

Tom Durant 2. Ordinance Adopting the 2005 Selah Urban Growth Area Comprehensive Plan
Amendment 2015-2 (City of Selah) as Recommended by the City of Selah Planning
Commission

Tom Durant 3. Ordinance Amending Ordinance No. 1634 Zoning Map Amendment No. 914.61.15-
02 Rezone to Two Family Residential (R-2)

P. Reports/Announcements

1. Mayor
2. Council Members

3. Departmental
4. Boards

Caprise Groo a. Planning Commission Minutes-October 6, 2015

Q. Executive Session

R.

1. 15 Minute Session - Potential Litigation RCW 42.30.110 (1) (i)

Adjournment

Next Study Session
Next Regular Meeting

November 10. 2015
November 10. 2015

Each iiem on (he Council Agenda is covered by an
Agenda Item Sheet (AIS)

A yellow AIS indicates an action item.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Informational Item

10/27/2015 G-2a

Title: Selah Downtown Association Monthly Report

Thru: Donald Wayman, City Administrator

Froro:^ Andrew Potter, Assistant to the City Administrator

Action Requested: Infonnational - No action

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Funding Source: N/A

Staff Recommendation:

Informational Only

Background / Findings & Facts:

Attached is the Treasurer's report for October 2015

Recommended Motion:

N/A



Selah Downtown Association
Treasurer Report

10/12/15

INCOME

Beg. Balance
Voided (check 1037) & transaction 5/18 boost
Total Income

EXPENSES

Endorsement for GL Insurance

UBI renewal fee

Rental CB's for Fall Event

Total Expenses

CURRENT BALANCE ON HAND

Tammy E. AlJ^Treasurer SDA

Date

$16474.55

$105.00

$16579.55

$102.10

$10.00

$120.00

$232.10

$16347.45



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

A GENOA ITEM SUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

10/27/2015 I-l

Title: Approval of Minutes: October 13, 2015 Study Session & Council
Meeting

Thru: Donald Wayman, City Administrator

From: Monica Lake, Executive Assistant

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Funding Source: N/A

Staff Recommendation:

Approval of Minutes

Background / Findings & Facts;

See Minutes for details

Recommended Motion:

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as read. (This item is part of the
Consent Agenda)



Study Session Minutes
Selah City Council
October 13,2015

3:00pm

Mayor Gawlik opened the Study Session.

The Council and Planning Commission members continued their review of the 10.24 rewrite,
discussing various items such as making sure that it applies to only new construction, keeping
the imderlying density the same if the property is rezoned as Planned Development, the
possibility of putting in a minimum for acreage or number ofhouses for a Planned Development,
mixed density, and using Victory lots as Planned Developments.

Both the Council and The Planning Commission agreed to meet again for a thirds Study Session,
to start at 4:30pm on October 27,2015.

The Study Session ended at 4:00pm.

Sclah City Council Study Session Minutes 9/22/2015



Regular Meeting
Selah Council Chambers

115 West Naches Avenue

Selah, WA 98942

A. Call to Order

B. Roll Call

Members Present:

Members Excused:

Staff Present:

E.

F.

G

1. Oral

City of Selah
Council Minutes

October 13,2015

Mayor Gawlik called the meeting to order at 4:00pm.

John Tiemey; Dave Smeback; Roy Sample; Jane Williams; Laura Ritchie

Allen Schmid; Paul Overby

Don Wayman, City Administrator; Bob Noe, City Attorney; Gary Hanna,
Fire Chief; Jim Lange, Deputy Fire Chief; Eric Steen, Deputy Police
Chief; Joe Henne, Public Works Director; Dale Novobielski,
Clerk/Treasurer; Charles Brown, Recreation Manager; Tom Durant,
Community Planner; Andrew Potter, Assistant to the City Administrator;
Monica Lake, Executive Assistant

C. Pledge ofAllegiance

Mayor Gawlik led the Pledge ofAllegiance. Pastor Jason Williams gave the prayer.

D. Agenda Changes None

Public Appearances/Introductions/ Presentations None

Getting To Know Our Businesses None

Communications

Council Member Tiemey stepped out of the meeting.

Mayor Gawlik opened the meeting.

Dr. Richard Weller, 50 Herlou Place, approached the podium and addressed the Council. He said that he
has attended several Planning Commission meetings, where they've had open dialogue on 10.24, but in

Page 1 Selah City Council Minules 10/13/2015



looking at the current version he doesn't see much of the oral and written public concerns reflected in
the document. He presented Council with copies ofwhat he had previously submitted to the Plaiming
Commission regarding the matter.

Council Member Tierney rejoined the meeting.

Dr. Weller remarked that his concern has nothing to do with being opposed to development in Selah, and
applauded the clarity and conciseness in new document, although he felt there were still vast ambiguities
and holes. He provided some examples regarding compatibility, compliance, and higher standards,
recommending that some ofthese very vague terms either be removed or clarified where anyone could
pick up document and understand what is expected, what's required and what the outcome will be for
the developer or someone living next to the development.

Council Member Ritchie requested that Council be provided with the other written comments submitted
to the Planning Commission.

City Administrator Wayman responded that staff will submit whatever they have.

Community Planner Durant noted that he had intended to present those when they were at the planning
stage.

Council Member Ritchie expressed her desire to have the information provided as soon as possible, prior
to the next Study Session.

John Teske, 182 Lancaster Road, approached the podium and addressed the Council. He said that he
attended a couple of the Planning Commission meetings, and that very little of what he put forward
made it into the rewrite of 10.24. He felt there is a lot ofambiguity in the document, and expressed his
concern with the lack of anything that addresses what is going on in the area surrounding a development,
or protects the neighbors around a development.

Seeing no one else rise to speak, the Mayor then closed the meeting.

2. Written

a. September 2015 Monthly Report for Building Permits and Inspections, Animal
Control and Code Enforcement

H. Proclamations/Armouncements None

I. Consent Agenda

Executive Assistant Lake read the Consent Agenda.

All items listed with an asterisk (*) were considered as part of the Consent Agenda.

* 1. Approval ofMinutes: September 22,2015 Study Session & Council Meeting

Page 2 Sclah City Council Minutes 10/13/2015



* 2. Approval of Claims & Payroll:

Payroll Checks Nos. 78994 - 79018 for a total of$243,181.79
Claim Checks Nos. 66503 - 66593 for a total of $266,334.24

* 3. Resolution M - 3: Resolution Establishing October 27th, 2015 as the Public Hearing Date
to Consider the Adoption of the 2015 Yakima County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard
Mitigation Plan as the Official Hazard Mitigation Plan for Selah, Washington

Council Member Tiemey moved, and Council Member Sample seconded, to approve the Consent
Agenda as read. By voice vote, approval of the Consent Agenda was unanimous.

J. Public Hearings None

K. New Business None

L. Old Business None

M. Resolutions

1. Resolution Adopting Public Participation Plan (PPP) for the City of Selah's
Comprehensive Plan Update

Community Planner Durant addressed M - 1. He said that the Growth Management Act (GMA) requires
the City to have guidelines for public participation when updating the Comprehensive Plan and that
YVCOG provided a PPP to the City to adopt as part of the update process. He noted that the only thing
he changed was the forms ofnotice; he removed circulation through utility billing and added posting on
the City's website, in public buildings and on the reader boards at the Civic Center and Carlon Park. He
recommended that Council adopt the PPP, adding that the Planning Commission will start haring some
ofthe Comprehensive Plan drafts and they will need to provide notice to the public.

Mayor Gawlik inquired as to when they would be receiving something from YVCOG.

Community Planner Durant replied that he has received the introductory chapter from them, and he
hopes to present it to the Planning Commission in November. He noted that he anticipates receiving the
second chapter in November.

Council Member Sample wondered if there was anything on the Comprehensive Plan update that might
change land uses, or ifhe was aware ofany that might be wise to look into.

Community Planner Durant inquired if he meant something like adopting an enterprise zone or a mixed
use designation. He said that it is up to the City as to what they want to direct YVCOG to do, and that he
has already discussed issues regarding capital facilities with the Mayor and City Administrator. He
commented that, without any further direction to YVCOG, they will receive an update similar to what is
currently in place.

Page 3 Selah City Council Minutes 10/13/201S



Council Member Sample asked if they ought to revisit some ofthe land uses within the urban growth
area, as he feels capital facilities are very important.

Council Member Smeback suggested that they review the urban growth boundary.

Community Planner Durant responded that the County has preliminarily determined that the City has
more land than they need in the urban growth boundaries.

Council Member Smeback wondered if the County would need to be petitioned if the City desired to
increase the urban growth boundaries.

Community Planner Durant replied in the affirmative, saying that Selah is in the schedule for next year
to discuss the matter, and that they would need to have the County involved ifthey wish to add more
commercial areas. He went on to say that the main thing they look at is residential, and where the capital
facilities come in, as the City would need to have a strategy in place for providing services, within the
next twenty-five years, to those within the urban growth.

Council Member Williams inquired about using the back side of the utility cards for notifications.

City Administrator Wayman responded that there are only two limited field on the firont of the card for
messages, and it's not an effective tool for communicating quantities of information.

Council Member Williams asked why the reverse side couldn't be used.

City Administrator Wayman remarked that the only spot he's aware that can be utilized is on the front.

Council Member Williams suggested putting the mailing address on the revers e to allow for additional
information in the front side. She noted that there are Council and Planning Commissionmeeting dates
on the firont now.

Council Member Smeback moved, and Council Member Tierney seconded, to approve the
Resolution Adopting Public Participation Plan (PPP) for the City of Selah's Comprehensive Plan
Update. Roll was called: Council Member Tierney - yes; Council Member Smeback-yes; Council
Member Sample - yes; Council Member Williams - yes; Council Member Ritchie - yes. By voice
vote, approval was unanimous.

2. Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to accept the Wemex Loop Transportation Alternatives
Program (TAP) Sidewalk Project as complete and release of contract bond

Public Works Director Henne addressed M - 2. He said that this is the final closing document for the
Wemex sidewalk project, which came in at budget. He noted that some items have to be completed
before they release the retainage, and when the list has been completed they will release the bond.

Council Member Smeback wondered about retainage behind the sidewalks on Wemex Loop and
Speyers, as he has noticed mud and gravel washed onto them after it rains.

Page 4 Sclah City Council Minutes 10/13/2015



Public Works Director Henne explained that the retainage is dependent on how much cut there is and the
amount of right ofway the City has, adding that they sometimes get a slope easement to slope private
property but it's at the owner's discretion how far back the City ean cut to slope. He noted that they have
to clean sidewalks after it rains, and that they try to gravel slopes and reseed them where feasible.

Council Member Smeback suggested acquiring additional right ofway before putting in a project.

Public Works Director Henne replied that funds were available for Speyers in the project was ready to
go, and Wemex Loop was the same type ofdeal.

Mayor Gawlik remarked that they had to deal with what they had in the existing right ofway when
meeting the standards for sidewalk width, curbs, and gutters.

Public Works Director Henne commented that he would not cut comers and put in sub-standard
sidewalks.

Council Member Williamswondered if they could get permission from adjacent landowners to put in a
block wall.

Public Works Director Henne responded that they couldn't do that with Federal funding.

Council Member Williams thought that maybe they could do it with City funding.

Public Works Director Henne replied in the negative, saying that any project using Federal fimds has to
follow their guidelines, which doesn't allow the City opportunity to buy rights ofway with City fimds
and try to blend it in.

Council Member Williams asked whether the bigger basalt gravel works to hold sand and dirt back.

Public Works Director Henne responded that it helps to break the rain up, and that heavier rainfall with
even come through the blocks. He noted that they don't put fabric behind a true retaining wall, only
those that are simply vertical walls.

Council Member Tiemey inquired about the letters that Huibregtse, Louman Associates, Inc. (HLA)
reference in their letter, as all he found attached were examples from other cities.

Public Works Director Henne replied that those documents would be filled out and sent in.

Council Member Hemey remarked that the letters indicates the City has copies already.

Public Works Director Henne responded that it refers to a notice ofcompletion.

Council Member Williams wondered if it came in under bid.

Public Works Director Henne replied in the affirmative.

Page 5 Selah City Council Minutes 10/13/2015



Mayor Gawlik asked if they have to give the unused funds back.

Public Works Director Henne responded in the affirmative.

Council Member Smeback moved, and Council Member Tierney seconded, to approve the
Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to accept the Wernex Loop Transportation Alternatives
Program (TAP) Sidewalk Project as complete and release of contract bond. Roll was called:
Council Member Tierney - yes; Council Member Smeback - yes; Council Member Sample - yes;
Council Member Williams - yes; Council Member Ritchie - yes. By voice vote, approval was
unanimous.

* 3. Resolution Establishing October 27th, 2015 as the Public Hearing Date to Consider the
Adoption of the 2015 Yakima County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan as the
Official Hazard Mitigation Plan for Selah, Washington

N. Ordinances None

O. Reports/Announcements

1. Mayor

Mayor Gawlik had no report.

2. Council Members

Coimcil Member Ritchie had no report.

Council Member Sample said that the letter from Kathy Fontaine, in the packet, had two paragraphs that
talked about the City not listening to the public, and three paragraphs ofconstructive comments and
ideas. He expressed hope that the letters keep coming.

Council Member Tierney said that he has several people approach him regarding the Selah Downtown
Association parade and the congestion it created during rush hour. He remarked that they felt it was nice
to have a parade to help Selah celebrate but suggested either a different hour or a different day of the
week, as it created a problem with people trying to get across town.

Council Member Smeback commented that the other home by the Civic Center was demolished, and
that the parking lot expansion has been a long time coming.

Council Member Williams had no report.

3. Department

Public Works Director Henne had no report.

Page 6 Selah City Council Minutes 10/13/2015



Community Planner Durant said that most ofhis report had been covered during his previous
presentation. He requested that Council consider that direction they would like to give to YVCOG
regarding the Comprehensive Plan update.

City Administrator Wayman remarked that Community Planner Durant is taking over the Volunteer Park
project, which they will need to do a SEPA for, and that he will present two options for the park during
the next Council meeting.

Clerk/Treasurer Novobielski said that the City's recycling contract with Basin Disposal provides that
they will do recycling pick-up once a month for residential, and provide cardboard containers for
commercial. He noted that there is no fee identified as a recycle cost. He stated that next Tuesday they
will begin the 2016 budget process, and that, as part of the development activities for next year, can as
Basin Disposal about the possibility of increased recycling charges.

Public Works Director Henne asked Council Member Ritchie if she knows whether there is enough
demand for twice a month service.

Coimcil Member Ritchie responded that she doesn't know if there is enough demand.

Clerk/Treasurer Novobielski remarked that the ladies up front could ask customers who come in to pay
their bill, and that Basin Disposal could be asked about twice a month service.

Council Member Ritchie suggested sending out a survey to gauge consumer interest.

Recreation Manager Brown said that the Selah Park & Recreation Service Area Board will hold a public
information meeting regarding het pool bond at the Civic center tomorrow, from 6 to 7pm.

Fire ChiefHanna said that last week was fire prevention week, and they had some kindergartens through
the station. He noted that hydrant service is completed, and that they are finishing up their evaluations of
SCBA equipment and will go out to bid in next week or so.

Deputy Police Chief Steen had no report.

Assistant to the City Administrator Potter gave an update on the potential employment of a full-time
City planner, noting that the position is contingent on approval of the 2016 budget. He remarked that the
Homecoming parade was latest activity venture by the Selah Downtown Association (SDA), and that
they held a meeting last night to inform local business about donating their B&O tax to the SDA. He
conunented that they are putting together the branding information and will bring to a Study Session,
and that the group is putting together their financials for the next year.

City Administrator Wayman said that they are working on encroachment issues with Volunteer Park
neighbors. He went on to say that the Civic Center facility is being reviewed for maintenance issues, and
that Bree Tait will be the principal manager of the facility for the future. He added that he and Public
Works Director Henne are working on plans for a new Civic Center and a combined Police Station/City
Hall, which will be presented to Coimcil at a future date

Page 7 Selah City Council Minutes 10/13/2015



City Attorney Noe had no report.

4. Boards

a. Planning Commission Minutes - September 16,2015 Meeting

Council took a five minute recess.

P. Executive Session

1. 30 Minute Session - Real Estate RCW 42.30.110 (1) (6)

Council went into Executive Session at 5:05pm. At 5:35pm, Council went back on the record. Mayor
Gawlik stated that no action was taken during the Executive Session.

Q. Adjournment

Council Member Smeback moved, and Council Member Sample seconded, that the meeting be
adjourned. Motion passed with four yes votes and one no vote.

The meeting adjourned at 5:36 pm.

EXCUSED

Paul Overby, Council Member

Dave Smeback, Council Member

Roy Sample, Council Member

Laura Ritchie, Council Member

ATTEST:

Dale E. Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer

John Gawlik, Mayor

John Tiemey, Council Member

EXCUSED

Allen Schmid, Council Member

Jane Williams, Council Member

Selah City Council Minutes 10/13/2015



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

10/13/2015 1-2

Title: Claims & Payroll

Thru: Donald Wayman, City Administrator

From: Monica Lake, Executive Assistant

Action Requested: Infomnational - No action

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: See Check Registers

Funding Source: Various. See Check Registers.

Staff Recommendation:

Approval of Claims & Payroll as listed on Check Registers.

Background / Findings <& Facts:

See Check Registers.

Recommended Motion:

Motion to Approve the Consent Agenda as read. (This item is part of the

Consent Agenda)



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

10/27/2015 J-1

Title: Public Hearing - Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan Update

Thru: Donald Wayman, City Administrator

From.: Kent Catlin, Yakima Valley Office of Emergency Management

Action Requested: Public Hearing / Public Meeting

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Funding Source: N/A

Staff Recommendation:

Conduct public hearing on the Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan update

Background / Findings & Facts:

As part of the jurisdictional Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 2015, the
City is required to conduct a public hearing on the matter. The Yakima Valley

Office of Emergency Management is updating the Plan for all jurisdictions it
oversees, and this is one step of the process.

Recommended Motion:

N/A



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

10/27/2015 K-1

Title: Volunteer Park options

Thru: Donald Wayman, City Administrator

From: Donald Wayraan, City Administrator

Action Requested; Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: $359,000

Funding Source: Fund 001

Staff Recommendation:

Concensus on one of the two options presented

Background / Findings & Facts:

HLA has provided the City two different options for Volunteer Park, one option
has no dog park, while the second option shows a dog park located at the north
end of the park.

Recommended Motion:

Concensus on which option Council prefers for Volunteer Park



A 2®03 Rhtr Road
I I I ZA YakiBU.VVA 98902

^ A-LiX^A 509.966,7000
Huibregtje,LoumanAssoaates,Iiic. Fa1509.965.3800

Civil Engineering ♦ Land Suwejing*Planning wuw.hUdviimm

TVnJBUC
UTUTY

£ASEU£>IT

/ STi«{TYP,> ^ V \/^ Ma
• s 5 • • • 5

T" /

lS\\\ • ( ' % \ i ', 1 I »

I ^ \\ N ^WAUIH^SMTH •• ' \ ~ X 1 rSAJSea 1 ,
I \ • V\ iTWic*) •• \ ' '1 1 • >
i -i 'lL • \ \ . ' ' • \ '• ^ UHELreRl . 4

v., ••• I \ \ % '.
{ .\y\'\- \ V 'vvX ^^CrPueUC UTILITY \ \ \ '-h

i •!'. •• • ^ \ \ \

^ ^ • • S \ \ '̂ ^ \ \ I I • 1 ^
U \ ^ V • ^ •• \ ' \ I PLAYGROUND AREA

I • • \ ^RESERVOIR I . * \ V \
t . • , OVEfifLOW \ \
1 '̂ 'CS' ^\ ^ \ ^ \ . ••- ••^ 'ik ••
\ i \ I , V "4^ X-V -/*' *' * '. 4
I */ * * • - r-WPua*™"eis6ueKT _»BiM,r^K«-nioOMTOfA*y, \ ' pWPOBUCC

WALKING PAT>4-1
7 PAOPCPOWER nGHTOPWay

D«T£:

10-23-16

fiLE NAMES:
OftAWNG- 15084.d«5

MS

PARKING / ~ '
LOT /

/
ZaPUBUC
UTIUTY /

CITY OF SELAH
VOLUNTEER PARK

SITE IMPROVEMENTS

OVERALL LAYOUT PLAN-EXPANDED PARKING



®\ ''

♦♦♦HLA
Hiiibreglse, lomnan Associates, li

FRisece coir
SIAMO (TTP.)

2803Rim Koid
Yj1dro«.WA 98802

509.9(6.7000
Fn509.9(5.3800

Qvll Engineering* Land Snrvqing*Planning i«wwJii4chTiA<>m

PI^ELfllR^illlli^^IRY

"a

GAZEBO/
PICNIC

SHELTER

I

PLAYGROUND AREA

103 NWBCRi OAtC
16084 JO-20-16

mx NAues:
DRAM1NC; 16084dw9

DCStCNED BY:

CNTCRED BY:

TWP

JRS

211 J

\

7ZZ2Z2Jk

TZZZZZi

4

TZZZZZTii

•6

77///7G>

i3'48" V'

PARKING
AREA

CITY OF SELAH
VOLUNTEER PARK

SITE IMPROVEMENTS

SITE LAYOUT PLAN-EXPANDED PARKING

REMO
CATC



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

10/27/2015 M-1

Title: Resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign an Intergovernmental
Cooperation Agreement with Franklin County Fire District #3, a municipal
corporation

Thru: Donald Wayman, City Administrator

From: Gary Hanna, Fire Chief

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: None

Funding Source: Not applicable

Staff Recommendation:

Approval

Background / Findings d: Facts:

Franklin County Fire District #3 wishes to utilize an Intergovernmental
Cooperation Agreement to purchase brush trucks for their department using the
bid specifications written by the Selah Fire Department. The Washington State
Inter-local Cooperation Act, Ch. 39.34 RCW, authorizes public agencies to
cooperatively purchase goods and services If all parties agree. Proposers agree that
other public agencies may purchase goods and services under this solicitation or
contract at their own cost and without the Selah Fire Department incurring any
financial or legal liability for such purchases.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Recommended Motion:

Move to Approve Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Sign an
Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement with Franklin County Fire District

#3.



CITYOFSELAH, WASHINGTON
RESOLUTIONNO.

A RESOLUTION authorizing the Mayor to sign an Intergovernmental
Cooperation Agreement with Franklin County Fire District #3, a municipal

corporation

WHEREAS, the City of Selah and Franklin County Fire District #3 wish to utilize each
other's contracts to jointly bid the acquisition of goods and services and disposition of property;
and

WHEREAS, the Interlocal Cooperation Act, as amended, and codified in Chapter 39.34
of the Revised Code of Washington provides for Interlocal cooperation between government
agencies; and

WHEREAS, both parties are required to make certain purchases by formal advertisement
and bid process, which is a time consuming and expensive process; and it is in the public interest
to cooperate in the combination of bidding requirements to obtain the most favorable bid for
each party where it is in their mutual interest; and

WHEREAS, the City of Selah and Franklin County Fire District #3 also wish to utilize
each other's contracts where it is in their mutual interest;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES as follows:

The Mayor is authorized to sign an Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement Interlocal
Agreement vrith Franklin County Fire District #3, a municipal corporation.

PASSED this 27*^ day ofOctober, 2015.

John Gawlik, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Dale Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer Robert F. Noe, City Attorney



INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is between CITY OF SELAH. a municipal corporation, and
FRANKLIN COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT #3. a municipal corporation.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Interlocal Cooperation Act, as amended, and codified in Chapter
39.34 of the Revised Code of Washington provides for interlocal cooperation
between governmental agencies; and

WHEREAS, Chapter 39.33 ofthe Revised Code ofWashington provides for the
intergovernmental disposition of property; and

WHEREAS, both parties are required to make certain purchases by forrnal
advertisement and bid process, which is a time consuming and expensive
process; and it is in the public interest to cooperate in the combination of bidding
requirements to obtain the most favorable bid for each party where it is in their
mutual interest; and

WHEREAS, the parties also wish to utilize each other's contracts where it is in
their mutual interest; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1. Purpose. The purpose of this agreement is to acknowledge the parties'
mutual interest to jointly bid the acquisition of goods and services and disposition
of property where such mutual effort can be planned in advance and to authorize
the acquisition of goods and services and the purchase or acquisition of goods
and services under contracts where a price is extended by eitherparty's bidder to
other governmental agencies:

2. Administration. No new or separate legal or administrative entity is
created to administer the provisions of this agreement. The administrator ofthis
contract shall be the chief of the district which is conducting the advertisement
and bid process.

3. Scope. This agreement shall allow the following activities:

A. Purchase or acquisition ofgoods and services by each party acting as
agent for either or both parties when agreed to in advance, in writing;

B. Purchase or acquisition of goods and services by each party where
provision has been provided in contracts for other agencies to avail
themselves ofgoods and services offered under the contract.



C. Disposal of goods by each party acting as agent for either, or both
parties when agreed to in advance, in writing.

4. Duration of Agreement - Termination. This agreement shall remain
in force until canceled by either party in writing.

5. Right to Contract independent Action Preserved. Each party
reserves the right to contract independently for the acquisition of goods or
services and or disposal of any property without notice to the other party and
shall not bind or othenwise obligate the other party to participate in the activity.

6. Compliance With Leoal Reouirements. Each party accepts
responsibility for compliance with federal, state or local laws and regulations
including, in particular, bidding requirements applicable to its acquisition of goods
and services or disposal of property.

7. Financing. The method of financing of payment shall be through
budgeted funds or other available funds of the party for whose use the property is
actually acquired or disposed. Each party accepts no responsibility for the
payment of the acquisition price of any good or services intended for use by the
other party.

8. Filing. Executed copies ofthe agreement shall be filed as required by
Section 39.34.040 of the Revised Code of Washington prior to this agreement
becoming effective. Pursuant to ROW 39.34.030, the party advertising for bids
shall post the bid or solicitation notice on a web site established and maintained
by a public agency purchasing cooperative, or similar service provider, or shall
provide an access link onthe state'sweb portal to the notice.

9. Interlocal Cooperation Disclosure. Each party may insert in its
solicitations for goods a provision disclosing that other authorized governmental
agencies may also wish to procure the goods being offered to the party and
allowing the bidder the options of extending its bid price, terms and condition.

10. Non-Delegation/Non-Assignment. Neither party may delegate the
performance of any contractual obligation, to a third party, unless mutually
agreed in writing. Neither party may assign this agreement without the written
consent of the other party.

11. Hold Harmless. Each party shall be liable and responsible for the
consequences of any negligent or wrongful act or failure to act on the party of
itself and its employees. Neither party assumes responsibility to the other party
for the consequences of any act or admission of any person, firm or corporation
not a party to this agreement.



-'-T

12. Severabilitv. Any provision of this agreement, which is prohibited or
unenforceable, shall be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or
unenforceabiiity, without invalidating the remaining provisions or effecting the
validity or enforcement of such provisions.

CITY OF SELAH

By:_
Title:

Date:

ATTEST:

City Clerk

FRANKLIN COUNTY
FIRE DISTRICT #3
7809 Road 36 N.

Pasco, WA 99301

Board Chair

Fire Commissioner

re Commissioner

Date:

ATTEST:

District Secretary



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

10/27/2015 M-2

Title: Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Sign an Agreement with the
Recreation and Conservation Office to Receive Grant Funding for the
Development of Volunteer Park

Thru: Donald Wayman, City Administrator

From: Charles Brown, Recreation Coordinator

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: $359,000

Funding Source: Fund 001

Staff Recommendation:

I recommend we approve the agreement with the State so that we can move
forward with the development of Volunteer Park.

Background / Findings & Facts:

In 2014, we made a presentation to the Recreation and Conservation Office
(RCO) for funding to develop the Volunteer Park property into an All-inclusive
park. This agreement allows us to begin ground work. Even though you have
not approved final plans, we would be able to get a SEPA done and begin
moving dirt for irrigation and grading for appropriate slopes for all inclusive
access to the entire park.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Recommended Motion:

I move we approve the Agreement with RCO for grant funding of Volunteer
Park.



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN AN AGREEMENT WITH

THE RECREATION AND CONSERVATION OFFICE TO RECEIVE GRANT

FUNDING FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF VOLUNTEER PARK

WHEREAS, The City of Selah referred to as the "City" and the Recreation and Conservation
Office referred to as the "RCO", wish to enter into a contract to formalize their partnership; and

WHEREAS, the City belives it to be beneficial to use grant monies to complete the
development of the Volunteer Park Property; and

WHEREAS, the City shall provide matching funds no less than $380,000 which has been
riased through fundraisers along with no more than $150,000 from the City of Selah primarily
in labor services; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
SELAH, WASHINGTON, that the Mayor is authorized to sign an agreement with the
Recreation and Conservation Office.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTON this 11"* day ofAugust, 2015.

ATTEST;

Dale E. Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Robert Noe, City Attorney

RESOLUTION NO.

John Gawlik, Mayor



WASHINGTON STATE

Recreation and
Consenration Office Funding Board Project Agreement

ProjectSponsor: Selah Parks &Recreation Department ProjectNumtier; 14-11430

Project Title: Volunteer Park Development Approval Date: 7/10/2015

A. PARTIES OF THE AGREEMENT

This Project Agreement (Agreement) is entered Into between ttie State of Washington by and through the Recreation
and Conservation Funding Board (RCFB or funding board) and the Recreation and Conservation Office, P.O. Box
40917, Olympia,Washington 98504-0917 and City of Selah by and through the Selah Parks & Recreation Department
(sponsor), 216 S First St, Selah, WA 96942 and shall be binding on the agents and all persons acting by or through
the parties.

B. PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement sets out the terms and conditions by which a grant is made from the Outdoor RecreaUon Account of
the State of Washington. The grant is administered by the Reaeation and Conservation Office (RCO) to the sponsor
for the project named above per the director's authority granted in RCW79A.25.020.

C. DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

The City of Selah willuse this grant to develop a cumently undeveloped 5.3 acre parcel into a universally accessible
park located in the City of Selah in Yakima County. This project will be the first of its kind in Yakima County. The
primary recreation provided by this project is for active recreation. This will be done by creating a universally designed
fullyaccessible playground, a 9-foot wide paved walking path around the perimeter of the park, workout stations, disc
golf course, a paved parking lot, gazebo, and restroom.

D. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE

The period of performance begins on July 10, 2015 (project start date) and ends on October 31, 2017 (project end
date). No allowable cost incurred before or after this period is eligible for reimbursement unless specifically provided
for by written amendment or addendum to this Agreement or specifically provided for by WACTitles 286,420; or
RCFB and/or SRFB policies published in RCO manuals as of the effective date of this agreement.

The sponsor must request extensions of the period of performance at least 60 days before the project end date.

The sponsor has obligations beyond this period of performance as described in Section E: On-going Obligations.

E. ON-GOING OBLIGATIONS

For this development and renovation project, the sponsor's on-going obligations shall be in perpetuity and shall
survive the completion/termination of this Project Agreement unless othenvise identified in the Agreement or as
approved by the funding board. It is the intent of the funding board's conversion policy (see Section 24: Restriction of
Conversion) that all lands acquired and/or facilities and areas developed, renovated, or restored with funding
assistance remain in the public domain in perpetuity.

F. PROJECT FUNDING

The total grant award provided by the funding board for this project shall not exceed $359,000.00. The funding board
shall not pay any amount beyond that approved for grant funding of the project and within the funding board's
percentage as identified below. The sponsor shall be responsible for all total project costs that exceed this amount.
The minimum matching share provided by the sponsor shall be as indicated below:

Percentage Dollar Amount Source of Funding

RCFB • WWRP • Local Parks 48.58% 5359,000.00 State

Project Sponsor 51.42% 5380,000.00

Total Project Cost 100.00% 5739,000.00

FEDERAL FUND INFORMATION

This/Agreement is not a federal subaward. This Agreement is funded with a grant from the State of Washington.

RC014-1143D Page lot 28



H. RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS INTERPRETED IN LIGHT OF RELATED DOCUMENTS

All rights and obligations of the parties under this Agreement shall be interpreted in light of the information provided in
the sponsor's application and the project summary under which the Agreement has been approved as well as
documents produced in the course of administering the Agreement, including the eligible scope activities and
milestones report incorporated herein by reference. Provided, to the extent that information contained in such
documents is inconsistent with this Agreement, it shall not be used to vary the terms of the Agreement, unless those
terms are shown to be subject to an unintended error or omission. This 'Agreement' as used here and elsewhere in
this document, unless othenwise spedficalty stated, has the meaning set forth in the definition of the Standard Terms
and Conditions.

I. AMENDMENTS MUST BE SIGNED IN WRITING

Except as provided herein, no amendmentfdeletions of any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement will be
effective unless provided inwriting and signed by both parties. Except, extensions of the period of performance and
minor scope adjustments need only be signed by RCO's director or designee. unless the consent of the sponsor to an
extension is required by its auditing policies, regulations, or legal requirements, in which case, no extension shall be
effective until so consented.

J. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATUTES, RULES, AND RCFB-SRFB POLICIES

This agreement is govemed by. and the sponsor shall comply with, all applicable state and federal laws and
regulations, includingany applicable RCFB and/or SRFB policies published in RCO manuals as of the effective date
of this agreement, all of which are incorporated herein by this reference as iffully set forth.

K. SPECIAL CONDITIONS

None

L AGREEMENT CONTACTS

The parties willprovide all written communications and notices under this Agreement to the mail address or the email
address listed below if not both:

Project Contact RCFB

Name: Charles Brown Reaeation and Consen/ation Office

Title: RecreationManager NaturalResources Building
Address: 216 South 1st Street PC Box 40917

Selah, WA 98942 Olympia, Washington 98504-0917
Email: cbrown@ci.selah.w3.us

These addresses shall be effective until receipt by one party from the other of a written notice of any change.

M. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement, with all amendments and attachments, constitutes the entire Agreement of the parties. No other
understandings, oral or otherwise, regarding this Agreement shall exist or bind any of the parties.

N. EFFECTIVE DATE

ThisAgreement, for project 14-11430, shall be subject to the writtenapproval of the RCO's authorized representative
and shall not be effective and binding untilthe date signed by both the sponsor and the RCO, whichever is later
(Effective Date). Reimbursements for eligible and allowabie costs incurred within the period of performance identified
in Section D: Period of Performance are allowed only when this Agreement is fully executed and an original is received
by RCO.

RCO 14-11430 Page 2 of 28



The sponsor has read, fullyunderstands, and agrees to be bound by all terms and conditions as set forth in this
Agreement. The signators listed below represent and wamant their authority to bind the parties to this Agreement.

Selah Parks & Recreation Department

By: Date;

Name: (printed)

Title:

State of Washington, Recreation Conservation Office
On behalf of the Recreation and Conservation Funding Board (RCFB or funding troard)

By: Date;

Kaleen Cottingham
Director

Recreation and Conservation Office

Pre-approved as to form:

By; /s/ Date: July 20. 2015
Assistant Attorney General

ROC 14-1143D Page 3 of 26



standard Terms and Conditions

of the Project Agreement

Table of Contents

SECTION 1. CITATIONS, HEADINGS AND DEFINITIONS

SECTION 2. PERFORMANCE BY THE SPONSOR

SECTION 3. ASSIGNMENT

SECTION 4. RESPONSIBILITY FOR PROJECT

SECTION 5. INDEMNIFICATION

SECTION 6. INDEPENDENT CAPACITY OF THE SPONSOR

SECTION 7. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

SECTION 8. COMPUANCE WITH APPUCABLE LAW

SECTION 9. RECORDS

SECTION 10. PROJECT FUNDING

SECTION 11. PROJECT REIMBURSEMENTS

SECTION 12. ADVANCE PAYMENTS

SECTION 13. RECOVERY OF PAYMENTS

SECTION 14. COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES

SECTION IS. INCOME AND USE OF INCOME

SECTION 16. PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS

SECTION 17. TREATMENT OF EQUIPMENT

SECTION 18. RIGHT OF INSPECTION

SECTION 19. STEWARDSHIP AND MONITORING

SECTION 20. PREFERENCES FOR RESIDENTS

SECTION 21. ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND SIGNS

SECTION 22. PROVISIONS APPLYING TO DEVELOPMENT. MAINTENANCE, RENOVATION, AND
RESTORATION PROJECTS

SECTION 23. PROVISIONS APPLYING TO ACQUISITION PROJECTS

SECTION 24. RESTRICTION ON CONVERSION OF REAL PROPERTY AND/OR FACILITIES TO

OTHER USES

SECTION 25. CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION, USE AND MAINTENANCE OF ASSISTED PROJECTS..

SECTION 26. PROVISIONS RELATED TO CORPORATE (INCLUDING NONPROFIT) SPONSORS

RCO 14-11430

Page

6

7

7

7

7

8

8

8

9

9

10

10

11

11

11

11

12

12

12

12

12

13

13

14

14

15

Page 4 of 28



SECTION 27. PROVISIONS FOR FEDERAL SUBAWARDS ONLY

SECTION 28. PROVISIONS FOR FIREARMS AND ARCHERY RANGE RECREATION PROJECTS

ONLY

SECTION 29. PROVISIONS FOR LAND AND WATER CONSERVATION FUND PROJECTS ONLY

SECTION 30. PROVISIONS FOR FARMLAND PRESERVATION ACCOUNT PROJECTS ONLY

SECTION 31. PROVISIONS FOR SALMON RECOVERY FUNDING BOARD PROJECTS ONLY

SECTION 32. PROVISIONS FOR PUGET SOUND ACQUISITION AND RESTORATION PROJECTS

ONLY

SECTION 33. PROVISIONS FOR ESTUARY AND SALMON RESTORATION PROGRAM - EPA AND

MARINE SHOREUNE PROTECTION PROJECTS ONLY

SECTION 34. PROVISIONS FOR ESTUARY AND SALMON RESTORATION PROGRAM • EPA

PROJECTS ONLY

SECTION 35. PROVISIONS FOR MARINE SHORELINE PROTECTION PROGRAM PROJECTS

ONLY

SECTION 36. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE

SECTION 37. AMENDMENTS

SECTION 38. LIMITATION OF AUTHORITY

SECTION 39. WAIVER OF DEFAULT

SECTION 40. APPLICATION REPRESENTATIONS - MISREPRESENTATIONS OR INACCURACY OR

BREACH

SECTION 41. SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE

SECTION 42. TERMINATION

SECTION 43. DISPUTE HEARING

SECTION 44. ATTORNEYS' FEES

SECTION 45. GOVERNING LAWWENUE

SECTION 46. PROVISIONS APPUCABLE ONLY IF FEDERALLY RECOGNIZED INDIAN TRIBE IS

THE SPONSOR

SECTION 47. SEVERABILITY

RCO 14-1143D

15

17

17

17

17

18

20

24

24

26

26

26

26

26

27

27

27

27

27

28

28

Page 5 of 28



WASHINGTON STATE

Recreation and
Conservation Office Standard Terms and Conditions

of the Project Agreement

ProjectSponsor Selah Parks & Recreation Department ProjectNumber 14-11430

Project Title: Volunteer Park Development Approval Date: 7/10/2015

SECTION 1. CITATIONS, HEADINGS AND DEFINITIONS

A. Any citations referencing specific documents refer to the current version at the date of project Agreement and/or any revisions in
the future.

B. Headings used in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not be considered a substantive part of this
Agreement.

0. Definitions. As used throughout this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meaning set forth below.
acquisition project-A project that purchases or receives a donation of fee or less than fee interests in teal property. These
interests include, but are not limited to. consen/ation easements, access/trail easements, covenants, water rights, leases, and
mineral rights.
Agreement or Project Agreement - The document entitled "Project Agreement" accepted by all parties to the present
transaction, includingwithout limitation these Standard Terms and Conditions, all attachments, addendums, and amendments,
and any Intergovernmental agreements or other documents that are incorporated Into the Project Agreement subject to any
limitations on their effect.

applicant - Any party that meets the qualifyingstandards, includingdeadlines, for submission of an application solicitinga grant
of funds from the funding board.
application • The documents and other materials that an applicant submits to the RCO to support the applicant's request for
grant funds; this includes materials required for the 'Application' in the RCO's automated project informationsystem, and other
documents as noted on the application checklist including but not limited to legal opinions, maps, plans, evaluation presentations
and scripts.
C.F.R. - Code of Federal Regulations
contractor - An entity that receives a contract from a sponsor. A contract is a legal instrument by virhich a non-Federal entity
(sponsor) purchases property or services to carry out the project or program under a Federal award. A contractor Is not the same
as the sponsor or subrecipient. A contract is for the purpose of obtaining goods and services for the non-Federal entity's
(sponsor's) own use and creates a procurement relationship with the contractor (2 C.F.R § 200.23 (2013)).
development project - A project that results in the construction of or work resulting in new elements, includingbut not limitedto
structures, facilities, and/or materials to enhance outdoor recreation resources.
director - The chief executive officer of the Recreation and Conservation Office or that person's designee.
education project - A project that provides information, education, and outreach programs for the benefit of outdoor
recreationists.

education and enforcement project - A project that provides information, education, and outreach programs; encourages
responsible recreational behavior, and may provide law enforcement for the benefit of outdoor recreationists.
equipment - Tangible personal property (includinginformationtechnology systems) having a useful lifeof more than one year
and a per-unrtacquisitioncost which equals or exceeds the lesser of the capitalizationlevelestablished by the sponsor or $5,000
(2 C.F.R. § 200.33 (2013)).
funding board - The board that authorized the funds in this Agreement, either the Recreation and Conservation Funding Board
(RCFB) created under chapter 79A.25.110 RCW, or the Salmon Recovery Funding Board (SRFB) aeated under chapter
77.85.110 RON.

Indirect cost - Costs incurred for a common or joint purpose benefitting more than one cost objective, and not readily
assignable to the cost objectives specifically benefitted, without effortdisproportionate to the results achieved (2 C.F.R. § 200.56
(2013)).
landowner agreement - An agreement that is required betvireen a sponsor and landowner for projects located on land not
owned, or otherwise controlled, by the sponsor.
maintenance project - A project that maintains existing areas and facilities through repairs and upkeep for the benefit of outdoor
recreationists.

maintenance and operation project - A project that maintains existing areas and facilities through repairs, upkeep, and routine
servicing for the benefit of outdoor recreationists.
match or matching share - The portion of the total project cost provided by the sponsor.
milestone - An important event with a defined date to track an activity related to implementation of a funded project and monitor
significant stages of project accomplishment.
pass-through entity - A non-Federal entity that provides a subaward to a subrecipient to carry out part of a Federal program (2
C. F. R. § 200.74 (2013)). Ifthis Agreement is a federal subaward, RCO is the pass-through entity.
period of performance - The time during which the sponsor may incur new obligations to carry out the work authorized under
this this Agreement (2 C.F.R. § 200.77 (2013)).
planning (RCFB projects only) - A project that results in one or more of the following: a study, a plan, construction plans and
specifications, and permits to increase the availability of outdoor recreational resources,
planning (SRFB projects only) - A project that results in a study, assessment, project design, or inventory,
pre-agreemem cost - A project cost incurred before the period of performance.

RCO 14-11430 Page 6 of 28



project - An undertaking that Is, or may t», funded in whole or in part with funds administered by RCO on behalf of the funding
board.

project cost • The total allowable costs incurred under this Agreement and all required match share and voluntary committed
matching share, including third-party contributions (2 C.F.R. § 200.83 (2013)).
RCO - Recreation and Conservation Office - The stale office that provides administrative support to the Reaeation and
Conservation Funding Board and Salmon Recovery Funding Board. RCO includes the director and staff, created by Chapters
79A.25.110 and 79A.25.1S0 RCW and charged with administering this Agreement by Chapters 77.85.110 and 79A.25.240 RCW.
reimbursement - RCO's payment of funds from eligible and allowable costs that have already been paid by the sponsor per the
terms of the Agreement.
renovation project - A project intended to improve an existing site or structure in order to increase its useful service life beyond
original expectations or functions. This does not include maintenance activities to maintain the facility for its originally expected
useful service life.

restoration project - A project that brings a site back to its historic function as part of a natural ecosystem or Improves the
ecological functionality of a site.
RCW- Revised Code of Washington
RTP - Recreational Trails Program - Afederal grant program administered by RCO that allows for the development and
maintenance of backcountry trails.
secondary sponsor - one of two or more eligible organizations that sponsors a grant-funded project. Of these two sponsors,
only one - the primary sponsor - may be the fiscal agent.
sponsor or primary sponsor - The eligible applicant who has been awarded a grant of funds and is bound by this executed
Agreement; includes its officers, employees, agents and successors. For projects funded with federal money, the sponsor Is a
subreciplent, which is a non-Federal entity that receives a subaward from a pass-through entity to carry out part of a Federal
program; but does not Include an individualthat is a beneficiary of such program. Asubredpient may also be a redpient of other
Federal awards directly from a Federal awarding agency (2 C.F.R. § 200.93 (2013)).
subaward - An award provided by a pass-through entity to a subredpient for the subredpient to carry out part of a Federal
award received by the pass-through entity. Itdoes not indude payments to a contractor or payments to an individualthat is a
benefidaiy of a Federal program. Asubaward may be provided through any form of legal agreement, induding an agreement that
the pass-through entity considers a contrad (2 C.F.R. § 200.92 (2013)). Asubaward is for the purpose of carrying out a portion of
a Federal award and creates a Federal assistance relationship with the subredpient (2 C.F.R. § 200.330 (2013)). Ifthis
Agreement is a Federal subaward, the subaward amount is the grant program amount in Section F: Project Funding,
subreciplent - Subredpient means a non-Federal entity that receives a subaward from a pass-through entity to carry out part of
a Federal program; but does not indude an individualthat is a benefidary of such program. Asubredpient may also be a
redpient of other Federal awards directly from a Federal awarding agency (2 C.F.R. §200.93 (2013)). If this ^reement is a
Federal subaward, the sponsor is the subredpient.
WAC- Washington Administrative Code.

SECTION 2. PERFORMANCE BY THE SPONSOR

The sponsor and secondary sponsor where applicable, shall undertake the projed as described InthisAgreement, the sponsor's
application, and in accordance withthe sponsor's proposed goals and objectives described in the applicationor documents submitted
withthe application,all as finally approved by the funding board. All submitted documents are incorporated by this reference as iffully
set forth herein. Also see Section 36: Order of Precedence.

Timely completion of the projed and submission of requireddocuments, indudingprogress and final reports, is important. Failureto
meet critical milestones or complete the project, as set out in this Agreement, is a material breach of the Agreement.

SECTION 3. ASSIGNMENT

Neither thisAgreement, nor any daim arising under this Agreement, shall be transfemedor assigned by the sponsor withoutprior
written consent of the RCO.

SECTION 4. RESPONSIBIUTY FOR PROJECT

While the funding board undertakes to assist the sponsor with the projectby providing a grant pursuant to thisAgreement, the projed
itself remains the sole responsibility of the sponsor. The funding board undertakes no responsibilities to the sponsor, a secondary
sponsor, or to any thirdparty, other than as is expressly set out Inthis Agreement. The responsibility for the implementationof the
projed is solely that of the sponsor, as is the responsibility for any daim or suit of any nature by any third party related in any way to
the project. When a projed is sponsored by more than one entity, any and allsponsors are equallyresponsible forthe projectand all
post-completion stewardship responsibilities.

SECTION 5. INDEMNIFICATION

The sponsor shall defend. Indemnify, and hold the State and its ofRcers and employees harmless from all daims, demands, or suits at
lawor equity arising in whole or in part fromthe adual or alleged acts, errors, omissions or negligence of. or the breach of any
obligation under thisAgreementby,the sponsor or the sponsor's agents, employees, contradors, subcontradors, or vendors, of any
tier, or any other persons for whom the sponsor may be legally liable.

Provided that nothing herein shall require a sponsor to defend or indemnify the State against and hold harmless the State from
daims, demands or suits based solely upon the negligence of the State, its empioyees and agents for whom the State is vicariously
liable.

Provided further that if thedaimsorsuits arecaused by orresult from theconcurrent negligence of(a) thesponsor orthesponsor's

RC014-1143D Page 7 of 28



agents, employees, contractors, subcontractors or vendors, of any tier, or any otiier persons forwtiom ttie Sponsor is legallyliable,
and (b) the State its employees and agents for whom It is vicariously liable, the indemnityobligation shall be valid and enforceable
only to the extent of the sponsor's negligence or the negligence of the sponsor's agents, employees, contractors, subcontractors or
vendors, of any tier, or any other persons for whom the sponsor may be legally liable.

This provision shall be included in any Agreement between sponsor and any contractors, subcontractors and vendors, of any Her.

The sponsor shall also defend, indemnify,and hold the State and its officers and employees harmless from all daims. demands, or
suits at law or equity arising inwhole or in part fromthe alleged patent or copyrightinfringement or other allegedly improper
appropriation or use of trade secrets, patents, proprietary information,know-how. copyright rights or inventions by the sponsor or the
sponsor's agents, employees, contractors,subcontractors or vendors, of any tier,or any other persons forwhomthe sponsor maybe
legally liable,in perfomianceof the Workunder thisAgreementor arisingout of any use in connectionwith the Agreementof
methods, processes, designs. Information or other items famished or communicated to State, its agents, officers and employees
pursuant to the Agreement; provided that this indemnity shall not applyto any alleged patent or copyright infringement or other
allegedly Improper appropriation or use oftrade secrets, patents, proprietary information, know-how, copyright rights or inventions
resulting from State's, its agents', officers' and employees'failure to comply with specific written instructions regarding use provided to
State, its agents, officers and employees by the sponsor, its agents, employees, contractors,subcontractors or vendors, of any tier, or
any other persons for whom the sponsor may be legally liable.

The sponsor spedficailyassumes potential liability for actions broughtby the sponsor's own employees or its agents against the State
and. solelyfor the purpose of this indemnification and defense, the sponsor spedficailywaives any immunity under the state industrial
insurance law. RCWTitle 51.

The RCO is induded withinthe tenn State, as are all other agendas, departments, boards, or other entities of state govemment.

SECTION 6. INDEPENDENT CAPACITY OF THE SPONSOR

The sponsor and its employees or agents performing under this Agreement are not officers,employees or agents of the funding board
or RCO. The sponsor will not holditselfout as nor daim to be an officer, employee or agent of RCO. a funding board or of the state of
Washington, nor will the sponsor make any daim of right, privilege or benefitwhich would accrue to an employeeunderChapters
41.06 or 28BRCW.

The sponsor is responsible forwithholding and/or payingemployment taxes, insurance, or deductions of any kind required byfederal,
state, and/or local laws.

SECTION 7. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Notwithstanding any determination by the Executive Ethics Boardor other tribunal. RCOmay. in its sole discretion, by written notice to
the sponsor terminate this Agreement ifit is found after due notice and examination by RCO that there is a violation of the Ethics in
PublicServiceAct. ROW 42.52; or any similarstatute involving the sponsor in the procurementof, or performanceunder, this
Agreement.

In the event thisAgreementis terminatedas provided herein. RCOshall be entitledto pursue the same remedies against the sponsor
as it couldpursue in the event of a breach of the Agreementby the sponsor. The rightsand remedies of RCO provided for in this
clause shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or this Agreement.

SECTION 8. COMPLIANCE WITH APPUCABLE LAW

The sponsor will implement the Agreementin accordance withapplicablefederal, state, and locallaws, regulationsand RCOand
funding board policies regardless ofwhether the sponsor is a publicor non-public organization.

The sponsor shall comply with, and RCOis not responsible fordetermining compliancewith, any and all applicablefederal, state, and
locallaws, regulations, and/or policies, including, but not limited to:State Environmental Policy Act; Industrial Insurance Coverage;
Architectural BarriersAct; permits (shoreline. Hydraulics ProjectApproval, demolition); land use regulations(critical areas ordinances.
Growth ManagementAct); federal and state safety and health regulations(Occupational Safety and HealthAdministration/Washington
Industrial Safety and Health Act); and Buy American Act.

A. NondiscriminationLaws. The sponsor shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local nondiscrimination laws and/or
policies, including but not limited to: the Americanswith Disabilities Act; Civil RightsAct; and the Age Discrimination Act. Inthe
event of the sponsor's noncompliance or refusal to complywithany nondiscrimination lawor policy, the Agreement may be
rescinded, cancelled, or terminated in whole or in part, and the sponsor may be declared ineligiblefor further grant awards from
the funding board. The sponsor is responsible for any and all costs or liability arising fromthe sponsor's failure to so complywith
applicable law.

B. Wbges and Job Safety. The sponsor agrees to complywithall applicablelaws, regulations, and policiesof the United States and
the State of Washingtonwhichaffectwages and job safety. The sponsor agrees when state prevailing wage laws (RCW39.12)
are applicable,to comply with such laws, to pay the prevailing rate ofwage to allworkers,laborers, or mectianicsemployedin the
performanceof any part of this contract, and to file a statement of intent to pay prevailing wage withthe Washington State
Department of Labor and Industries as required by RCW 39.12.040. The sponsor also agrees to complywiththe provisionsof the
rules and regulations of the Washington State Department of Labor and Industries.

RCO 14-1143D Page 8 of 28



C. Archaeological and Cultural Resources. The RCO facilitates the review of applicable projects for potential impacts to
archaeological sites and state cultural resources. The sponsor must assist RCO in compliance with Executive Order 05-05 or the
National Historic Presenration Act before initiating ground-disturbing activity. The funding board requires documented compliance
with Executive Order 05-05 or Section 106 of the National HistoricPreservab'on Act. whichever is applicable to the project. Ifa
federal agency declines to consult, the sponsor shall comply with the requirements of Executive Order 05-05. In the event that
archaeological or historic materials are discovered during project activities, work in the location of discovery and immediate
vidnity must stop instantly, the area must be secured, and notification must be provided to the following: concerned Tribes'
cultural staff and cultural committees, RCO, and the State Department of Archaeology and Histonc Preservation. Ifhuman
remains are discovered during project activity, work in the location of discovery and immediate vidnity must stop instantly, the
area must be secured, and notification provided to the concerned Tribe's cultural staff and cultural committee, RCO, State
Department ofArchaeology, the coroner and local law enforcement in the most expeditious manner possible according to RCW
68.50.

D. Restrictions on Grant Use. No part of any funds provided under this grant shall be used, other than for normal and recognized
executive-legislative relationships, for publidty or propaganda purposes, or for the preparation, distribution,or use of any kit,
pamphlet, booklet, publication, radio, television, or video presentation designed to support or defeat legislation pending before
the tJ.S. Congress or any state legislature.

No part of any funds providedunder this grant shall be used to pay the salary or expenses of any sponsor, or agent acting for
such sponsor, related to any activity designed to influence legislationor appropriations pending before the U.S. Congress or any
state legislature.

E. Debarment and Certification. By signing the Agreement with RCO, the sponsor certifies that neither it nor its principals nor any
other lower tier participant are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily
excluded fr^om participation in this transacUon by Washington State Labor and Industries. Further, the sponsor agrees not to enter
into any arrangements or contracts related to this Agreement with any party that is on the 'Contractors not Allowedto Bid on
Public Works Projects' list.

SECTION 9. RECORDS

A. Maintenance. The sponsor shall maintain books, records, documents, data and other evidence relating to this Agreement and
performance of the services described herein, including but not limited to accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently
and property reflect all direct and indirect costs of any nature expended in the performance of this Agreement. Sponsor shall
retain such records for a period of six years fromthe date RCO deems the project complete, as defined in Section 11: Project
Reimbursements. Ifany litigation, claim or audit is started before the expiration of the six (6) year period, the records shall be
retained until all litigation, claims, or audit findings involving the records have been resolved.

B. Access to Records and Data. At no additional cost, the records relating to the Agreement, including materials generated under
the Agreement, shall be subject at ail reasonable times to inspection, reviewor audit by RCO, personnel dulyauthorized by RCO,
the Office of the State Auditor, and federal and state officials so authorized by law, regulation or Agreement. This Includes access
to all information that supports the costs submitted for payment under the grant and all findings, conclusions, and
recommendations of the sponsor's reports, including computer models and methodology for those models.

C. Public Records. Sponsor acknowledges that the funding board is subject to RCW 42.56 and that this Agreement and any records
sponsor submits or has submitted to the State shall be a public record as defined in RCW42.56. RCO administers public records
requests per WAC286-06 and 420-04. Additionally, in compliance with RCW 77.85.130(8), sponsor agrees to disclose any
infomriation in regards to expenditure of any fundingreceived fromthe SRFB. Bysubmittingany record to the state sponsor
understands that the State may be requested to disdose or copy that record under the state publicrecords law,currently codified
at RCW42.56. The sponsor warrants that it possesses such legal rights as are necessary to permit the State to disdose and
copysuch document to respond to a request under state publicrecords laws. The sponsor hereby agrees to release the State
from any daims arisingout of allowing such reviewor copying pursuant to a publicrecords ad request, and to indemnify against
any daims arising fromallowing such reviewor copying and pay the reasonable cost of state's defense of such daims.

SECTION 10. PROJECT FUNDING

A. Authority. This agreement is funded through a grant award fromthe recreation and conservation funding board per WAC
286-13-050 and/or the salmon recovery funding board per WAC420-04-050. The diredor of RCO enters into this agreement per
delegated authority in RCW 79A.25.020 and 77.85.120.

B. Additional Amounts. The funding board shall not be obligated to pay any amount beyond the dollar amount as identified in this
Agreement, unless an additional amount has been approved in advance by the funding board or diredor and incorporated by
written amendment into this Agreement.

C. Beforethe Agreement.Noexpendituremade, or obligation incurred, by the sponsor before the projed start date shall be eligible
for grant funds, in whole orin part, unless specifically provided for by Ending board policy, such as a waiver ofretroadlvity or
program spedfic eligible pre-Agreement costs. For reimbursements of such costs, this Agreement must be fully executed and an
original received by RCO. The dollar amounts identified in this Agreement may be reduced as necessary to exdude any such
expenditure from reimbursement.

0. Requirements for Federal Subawards. Pre-agreements costs before the federal award date in Sedion F: Projed Funding are
ineligible unless approved by the federal award agency (2 C.F.R § 200.458 (2013)).

RCO 14-1143D Page 9 of 28



E. After the Period of Performance. No expenditure made, or obligation incurred, following the period of performance shall t)e
eligible, in whole or In part, for grant funds hereunder. In addition to any remedy the funding board may have under this
Agreement, the grant amounts Identified In this Agreement shall be reduced to exclude any such expenditure from participation.

SECTION 11, PROJECT REIMBURSEMENTS

A. Reimbursement Basis. This Agreement Is administered on a reimbursement basis per WAC 286-13 and/or 420-12. The sponsors
may only request reimbursement for eligible and allowable costs incurred during the period of perfomiance. The sponsor may
only request reimbursement after (1) this Agreement has been fiillyexecuted and (2) the sponsor has remitted payment to Its
vendors. RCO will authorize disbursement of project funds only on a reimbursable basis al Ihe percentage as defined InSection
P; Project Funding. Reimbursement shall not be approved for any expendfture not Incurred by the sponsor or for a donation used
as part of Its matching share. RCO does not reimburse for donations, which the sponsor may use as part of its percentage. All
reimbursement requests must Include proper documentation of expenditures as required by RCO.

B. Reimbursement Request Frequency. Sponsors are encouraged to send RCO a reimbursement request at least quarterly.
Sponsors are required to submit a reimbursement request to RCO, at a minimumfor each project at least once a year for
reimbursable activitiesoccurring between July 1 and June 30 or as identified in the milestones. Sponsors must refer to the most
recently published/adopted RCO polides and procedures regarding reimbursement requirements.

C Compliance and Payment. Tfte obligation of RCO to pay anyamount(s) underthisAgreement is expressly conditioned on strict
compliance with the terms of this Agreement by the sponsor.

D. Retalnage Held Until Project Complete. RCO reserves the rightto withhold disbursement of up to the finalten percent (10%) of
the total amount of the grant to the sponsor until the projecthas been completed.Aprojectis considered "complete" when:
1. Allapproved or required activities outlined In the Agreement are done;
2. On-slte signs are in place (Ifapplicable);
3. Afinal project report is submitted to and accepted by RCO;
4. Any other required documents are complete and submitted to RCO;
5. A final reimbursement request Is submitted to RCO;
6. The completed project has been accepted by RCO;
7. Final amendments have tieen processed; and
8. Fiscal transactions are complete.
9. RCOhas accepted a final boundarymap. Ifrequiredforthe project,forwhich the Agreementterms will applyInthe future.

E. RequirementsforFederal Subawards: Match. The sponsor's matching share must complywith2 C.F.R.§ 200.306 (2013). Any
shared costs or matching funds and allcontributions, Including cash and third party In-kind contributions, must be accepted as
part of the sponsor's matching share when such contributions meet all of the following criteria:
t. Are verifiable from the non-Federal entity's (sponsor's) records;
2. Are not included as contributions for any other Federal award;
3. Are necessary and reasonable for accomplishment of project or program objectives;
4. Are allowable under 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart E-Cost Principles (2013);
5. Arenot paid by the Federal Governmentunder another Federal award, except where the Federal statute authorizing a program
specifically provides that Federalfunds made available forsuch program can be applied to matching or cost sharing
requirements of other Federal programs;
6. Areprovided forInthe approvedbudgetwhenrequiredby the Federalawarding agency Identified InSectionG: FederalFund
Information of this Agreement; and
7. Conform to other provisions of 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart 0-Post FederalAward Requirements(2013),as applicable.

F. RequirementsforFederal Subawards: Close out. Per 2 C.F.R§ 200.343 (2013). the non-Federalentity(sponsor) must:
1. Submit, no later than 90 calendar days after the end date of the period of performance, all financial, performance, and oUier
reportsas required by the terms and conditions of the Federalaward.The Federalawarding agency or pass-throughentity (RCO)
may approve extensions when requested by the sponsor.
2. Liquidate allobligations Incurred underthe Federalawardnot later than 90 calendardays afterthe end date of the periodof
performance as specified In the terms and conditions of the Federal award.
3. Refundany balances of unobligated cash that the Federal awardingagency or pass-through entity(RCO)paid Inadvance or
paid and that are not authorizedto be retained by the non-Federalentity(sponsor) for use Inother projects.See 0MB Circular
A-129and see 2 C.F.R § 200.345 Collectionof amounts due (2013), for requirements regarding unretumed amounts that
become delinquent debts.
4. Accountfor any real and personal propertyacquiredwithFederal funds or received from the Federal Governmentin
accordance with 2 C.F.R §§ 200.310 Insurance coverage through200.316 Propertytnjst relationship and 200.329 Reporting on
real property (2013).

SECTION 12. ADVANCE PAYMENTS

Advancepayments of or Inanticipation ofgoods or services are not allowed unless approved bythe RCOdirectorand are consistent
withlegal requirements and Manual 8: Reimbursements. See WAC 420-12.

RCO 14-1143D Page 10 ol 28



SECTION 13. RECOVERY OF PAYMENTS

A. Recovery for Noncompliance. In the event that the sponsor fails to expend funds under this Agreement in accordance with state
and federal laws, and/or the provisions of the Agreement, or meet its percentage of the project total, RCO reserves the right to
recover grant award funds in the amount equivalent to the extent of noncompliance in addition to any other remedies available at
law or in equity.

B. Overpayment Payments. The sponsor shall reimburse RCO for any overpayment or erroneous payments made under the
Agreement. Repayment by the sponsor of such funds under this recovery provision shall occur within 30 days of demand by
RCO. Interest shall accrue at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum from the time that payment becomes due and owing.

C. Requirements for Federal Subawards. The pass-through entity (RCO) may impose any of the remedies as authorized In 2 C.F.R
§§ 200.207 Specific conditions and/or 200.338 Remedies for noncompliance (2013).

SECTION 14. COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES

The sponsor warrants that no person or selling agent has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this Agreement on an
Agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee, excepting bona fide employees or bona fide
established agents maintained by the sponsor for the purpose of securing business. RCO shall have the right, in the event of breach
of this clause by the sponsor, to terminate this Agreement without liability or, in its discretion, to deduct from the Agreement grant
amount or consideration or recover by other means the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee.

SECTION 15. INCOME ANDUSEOFINCOME

A. RCFB Projects. See WAC 286-13-110 for additional requirements for projects funded from the RCFB.

B. Income.

1. Compatible source. The source of any Income generated in a funded project or project area must be compatible with the
funding source and the Agreement.

2. Fees. User and/or other fees may be charged in connection with land acquired or facilities developed, maintained,
renovated, or restored with funding board grants if the fees are consistent with the:
(a) Value of any servicefs) furnished;
(b) Value of any opportunities furnished; and
(c) Prevailing range of public fees in the state for the activityinvolved.
(d) Excepted are Firearms and Archery Range Recreation Program safety classes (firearm and/or hunter) for
which a fedlity/range fee must not t>e charged (ROW 79A.25.210).

C. Use of income. Regardless of whether income or fees in a project work site (includingentrance, utility corridor permit, cattle
grazing, timber harvesting, farming, etc.) are gained during or after the reimbursement period cited in the Agreement, unless
precluded by state or federal law, the revenue may only be used to ofteet:

1. The sponsor's matching resources;

2. The project's total cost;

3. The expense of operation, maintenance, stewardship, monitoring, and/or repair of the facilityor program assisted by the
funding board grant;

4. The expense of operation, maintenance, stewardship, monitoring, and/or repair of other similar units in the sponsor's
system; and/or

5. Capital expenses for similar acquisition and/or development and renovation.

D. Requirements for Federal Subawards. Sponsors must also comply with 2 C.F.R. § 200.307 Program income (2013).

SECTION 16. PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS

A. Procurement Requirements. IfSponsors have a procurement process that follows applicable state and/or required federal
procurement principles, it must be followed. Ifno such process exists the sponsor must followthese minimum procedures:

1. Publish a notice to the public requesting bids/proposals for the project;

2. Specify in the notice the date for submlttal of bids/proposals;

3. Specify In the notice the general procedure and criteria for selection; and

4. Comply with the same legal standards regarding unlawfuldiscriminationbased upon race, ethnicity, sex, or sex-orientation
that are applicable to state agencies In selecting a bidder or proposer.

This procedure creates no rights for the benefit of third parties, including any proposers, and may not be enforced or subject to
review of any kind or manner by any other entity other than the RCO. Sponsors may be required to certifyto the RCO that they
have followed any applicable state and/or federal procedures or the above minimum procedure where state or federal procedures
do not apply.

RC014-11430 PagellorZB



B. RequirementsforFederal Subawards.

1. For all Federal subawards except RTF projects, non-Federal entitles (sponsors) must follow 2 C.F.R §§ 200.318 General
procurement standards tlirougti 200.326 Contract Provisions (2013).

2. For RTP subawards, sponsors foliowsucti policies and procedures allowed by the State when procuring property and
services under a Federal award (2 C.F.R § 1201.317 (2013)). State procurement policies are in subsection A of this section.

SECTION 17. TREATMENT OF EQUIPMENT

A. Discontinued Use. Equipment shall remain in the possession of the sponsor for the duration of the project or applicable grant
program. When the sponsor discontinues use of the equipment for the purpose for which it was funded, RCO willrequite the
sponsor to deliver the equipment to RCO, dispose of the equipment according to RCO policies, or retum the fair market value of
the equipment to RCO. Equipment shall be used only for the purpose of this Agreement unless othenwise provided herein or
approved by RCO in writing.

B. Loss or Damage. The sponsor shall be responsible for any loss or damage to equipment which results from the negligence of the
sponsor or which results from the failure on the part of the sponsor to maintain and administer that equipment in accordance with
sound management practices.

C. Requirements for Federal Subawards. Except RTP, procedures for managing equipment (including replacement equipment),
whether acquired in whole or in part under a Federal award, untildisposition takes place will, as a minimum,meet the following
requirements (2 C.F.R § 200.313 (2013)):

1. Property records must be maintained that include a description of the property, a serial number or other Identification
number, the source of funding for the property (includingthe FAIN), who holds title, the acquisition date, and cost of the
property, percentage of Federal participation in the project costs for the Federal award under which the property was
arxiuired, the location, use and condition of the property, and any ultimate disposition data including the date of disposal and
sale price of the property.

2. A physical inventory of the property must be taken and the results reconciled with the property records at least once every
two years.

3. A control system must be developed to ensure adequate safeguards to prevent loss, damage, or theft of the property. Any
loss, damage, or theft must be investigated.

4. Adequate maintenance procedures must be developed to keep the property in good condition.

5. if the non-Federal entity is authorized or required to sell the property, proper sales procedures must be established to
ensure the highest possible retum.

D. Requirements for RTP Subawards. The subredpient (sponsor) shall follow such poiides and procedures allowed by the State
with respect to the use, management and disposal of equipment acquired under a Federal award (2 C.F.R § 1201.313 (2013)).

SECTION 18, RIGHT OF INSPECTION

The sponsor shall provide right of access to the project to RCO, or any of its officers, or to any other authorized agent or offidai of the
state of Vtbshington or the federal govemment, at all reasonable times, in order to monitor and evaluate performance, compliance,
and/or quality assurance under this Agreement.

Ifa landowner agreement or other form of control and tenure as described in Sedion 22.B: Control and Tenure has been executed, it
will further stipulate and define the funding board and RCO's tight to insped and access lands acquired or developed with funding
board assistance.

SECTION 19. STEWARDSHIP AND MONITORING

Sponsor agrees to perform monitoring and stewardship fundions as stated in policy documents approved by the funding boards or
RCO. Sponsor further agrees to utilize, where applicable and finandally feasible, any monitoring protocols recommended by the
funding board.

SECTION 20. PREFERENCES FOR RESIDENTS

Sponsors shall not express a preference for users of grant assisted projects on the basis of residence (induding preferential
reservation, membership, and/or pemiit systems) except that reasonable differences in admission and other fees may be maintained
on the basis of residence. Even so, the funding board discourages the imposition of differential fees. Fees for nonresidents must not
exceed twice the fee imposed on residents. Where there is no fee for residents but a fee is charged to nonresidents, the nonresident
fee shall not exceed the amount that would be imposed on residents at comparable state or local public fadiities.

SECTION 21. ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND SIGNS

A. Publications. The sponsor shall indude language which acknowledges the funding contribution of the applicable grant program to
this project in any release or other publicationdeveloped or modified for, or refem'ng to, the project during the project period and
in the future.

B. Signs. The sponsor also shall post signs or other appropriate media during the project period of performance and in the future at
project entrances and other locations on the project which acknowledge the applicable grant program's funding contribution,
unless exempted in funding board policy or waived by the director.

RCO 14-1143D Page 12 of 28



C. Ceremonies. The sponsor shall notify RCOno later than twoweeks t>efore a dedication ceremonyforthisproject. The sponsor
shall verbally acknowledge the applicable grant program's funding contribution at all dedication ceremonies.

0. FederallyFunded Projects.When issuing statements, press releases, requests forproposals, bidsolicitations, and other
documents describing a projectfunded inwholeor in part with federal money provided forin this grant, sponsors shall clearly
state:

1. The fund source:
2. The percentage of the total costs of the project that is financed with federal money;
3. The dollar amount of federal funds for the project; and
4. The percentage and dollar amount of the total costs of the project that is financed by nongovernmental sources.

SECTION 22. PROVISIONS APPLYING TO DEVELOPMENT, MAINTENANCE, RENOVATION AND RESTORATION PROJECTS

The following provisions shall be in force only if the project described in this Agreement is for construction of land or facilities in a
development, maintenance, renovation or restoration project:

A. Document Review and Approval. The sponsor agrees to submit one copy of all construction plans and specifications to RCO for
review prior to implementation or as othererise identified in the milestones. Review and approval by RCO will be for compliance
with the terms of this Agreement. Only change orders that impact the amount of funding or changes to the scope of the project as
described to and approved by the funding board or RCO must receive prior written approval.

B. Control and Tenure. The sponsor must provide documentation that shows appropriate tenure (landowner agreement, long-term
lease, easement, or fee simple ownership) for the land proposed for construction. The documentation must meet current RCO
requirements Identified in the appropriate grant program policy manual as of the effective date of this Agreement.

C. Nondiscrimination. Except where a nondiscrimination clause required by a federal funding agency Is used, the sponsor shall
insert the following nondiscrimination clause in each contract for construction of this project:

'During the performance of this confracf, the contractor agrees to comply with aii
federal and state nondiscrimination laws, regulations and poiides."

D. Use of Best Management Practices. Sponsors are encouraged to use best management practices developed as part of the
Washington State Aquatic htabitat Guidelines (AHG)Program. AHGdocuments include "Integrated Streambank Protection
Guidelines', 2002; "Protecting Nearshore Habitat and Functions in Puget Sound", 2010; "Stream Habitat Restoration Guidelines'.
2012; "Water Crossing Design Guidelines'. 2013; and 'Marine Shoreline Design Guidelines', 2014. These documents, along with
new and updated guidance documents, and other Information are available on the AHG Web site. Sponsors are also encouraged
to use best management practices developed by the Washington Invasive Spedes Coundl (WISC)described In"Redudng
Acddental Introductions of Invasive Spedes' which is available on the WISC Web site.

SECTION 23. PROVISIONS APPLYING TO ACQUISITION PROJECTS

The following provisions shall be in force only if the project described in this Agreement is an acquisition project

A. Evidence of Land Value. Before disbursement of funds by RCO as provided under this Agreement, the sponsor agrees to supply
documentation acceptable to RCO that the cost of the property rights acquired has been established according to funding board
policy.

B. Evidence of Title.The sponsor agrees to provide documentation that shows the type of ownership interest for the property that
has been acquired. This shall be done before any payment of finandal assistance.

C. Legal Description of Real Property Rights Acquired. The legal description of the real property rights purchased with funding
assistance provided through this project Agreement (and protected by a recorded conveyance of rights to the State of
Washington) shall be incorporated into the Agreement before final payment.

D. Conveyance of Rights to the State of Vt^shington. When real property rights (both fee simple and lesser interests) are acquired,
the sponsor agrees to execute an appropriate document conveying certain rights and responsibilities to RCO, on behalf of the
State of Washington. These documents includea Deed of Right, Assignmentof Rights,Easements and/or Leases as described
below. The sponsor agrees to use document language provided by RCO, to record the executed document in the County where
the real propertylies, and to providea copy of the recorded document to RCO. The document required will vary depending on the
project type, the real property rights being acquired and whether or not those rights are being acquired inperpetuity.

1. Deed of Right. The Deed of Right conveys to the people of the state of Washington the right to preserve, protect, and/or use
the property for public purposes consistent with the fund source. See WAC420-12 or 286-13. Sponsors shall use this
document when acquiring real property rights that include the underlying land. This document may also be applicable for
those easements where the sponsor has acquired a perpetual easement for public purposes.

2. Assignment of Rights. The Assignment of Rights document transfers certain rights such as access and enforcement to
RCO. Sponsors shall use this document when an easement or lease is being acquired for habitat conservation or salmon
recovery purposes. The Assignment of Rights requires the signature of the underlying landowner and must be Incorporated
by reference in the easement document.

3. Easements and Leases. The sponsor may incorporate required language fromthe ISeed of Right or Assignment of Rights
directly Into the easement or lease document, thereby eliminating the requirement for a separate document. Language will
depend on the situation; sponsor must obtain RCO approval on the draft language prior to executing the easement or lease.

RC014-1143D Page 13 0(28



E. Real Property Acquisition and Relocation Assistance

1. Federal Acquisition Policies. When federal funds are part of this Agreement, the Sponsor agrees to comply with the terms
and conditions of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970,84 Stat. 1894
(1970)~Public Law 91-646. as amended by the Surface Transportation and Uniform Relocation Assistance Act. PL
100-17-1987. and applicable regulations and procedures of the federal agency implementing that Act.

2. State AcquisitionPolicies. When state funds are part of this Agreement, the sponsor agrees to comply with the terms and
conditions of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policy of the State of Washington. Chapter
8.26 ROW. and Chapter 468-100 WAC.

3. Housing and Relocation. In the event that housing and relocation costs, as required by federal law set out in subsection (1)
above and/or state law set out in subsection (2) above, are involved in the execution of this project, the sponsor agrees to
provide any housing and relocation assistance required.

F. Buildings and Structures. In general, grant funds are to be used for outdoor recreation, habitat conservation, or salmon recovery.
Sponsors agree to remove or demolish ineligiblestructures. Sponsors must consult RCO regarding compliance with Section 8.C.:
Archaeological and Cultural Resources before structures are removed or demolished.

G. Hazardous Substances.

1. Certification. The sponsor shali inspect, investigate, and conduct an environmental audit of the proposed acquisition site for
the presence of hazardous substances, as defined in RCW 70.1050.020(10). and certify:
a. No hazardous substances were found on the site, or
b. Any hazardous substances found have been treated and/or disposed of in compliance with applicable state and federal
laws, and the site deemed "clean."

2. Responsibility. Nothing in this provision aiters the sponsor's duties and liabilities regarding hazardous substances as set
forth in RCW 70.1050.

3. HoldHarmless. The sponsor will defend, protect and hold hamiiess RCO and any and all of Its employees and/or agents,
from and against any and all liability, cost (including but not limited to all costs of defense and attorneys' fees) and any and
all loss of any nature from any and all daims or suits resulting from the presence of, or the release or threatened release of.
hazardous substances on the property the sponsor Is acquiring.

H. Requirements for Federal Subawards. The non-Federal entity (sponsor) must submit reports at least annually on the status of
real property in which the Federal Govemment retains an interest, unless the Federal interest in the real property extends 15
years or longer. In those instances where the Federal interest attached is for a period of 15 years or more, the Federal awarding
agency or the pass-through entity (RCO). at its option, may require the sponsor to report at various multi-year frequendes (e.g..
every two years or every three years, not to exceed a five-year reporting period; or a Federal awarding agency or RCO may
require annual reporting for the first three years of a Federal award and thereafter require reporting every five years) (2 C.F.R §
200.329 (2013)).

SECTION 24. RESTRICTION ON CONVERSION OF REAL PROPERTY AND/OR FACILITIES TO OTHER USES

The sponsor shall not at any time convert any real property (induding any interest therein) or fadlity acquired, developed, maintained,
renovated, and/or restored pursuant to this Agreement to uses other than those purposes for which funds were approved without prior
approval of the funding board in compliance with applicable statutes, rules, and funding board polides. Also see WAC Title 286 or
420. It is the intent of the funding board's conversion policy,current or as amended In the future, that all real property or fadlities
acquired, developed, renovated, and/or restored with funding assistance remain in the public domain in perpetuity unless otherwise
identified in the Agreement or as approved by the funding board. Determination of whether a conversion has occurred shall be based
upon applicable law and RCFB/SRFB polides.

For acquisition projeds that are term limited, such as one involving a lease or a term-limited restoration, renovation or development
project or easement, this restriction on conversion shail apply only for the length of the term, unless otherwise provided in written
documents or required by applicabie state or federai law. In such case, the restridion applies to such projects for the length of the
term spedfied by the lease, easement, deed, or landowner agreement.

When a conversion has been determined to have occurred, the sponsor is required to remedy the conversion per established funding
board polides.

SECTION 25. CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION, USE AND MAINTENANCE OF ASSISTED PROJECTS

The following provisions shall be Inforce only Ifthe projed described in this Agreement is an acquisition, development, maintenance,
renovation or restoration projed;

A. Property and fadlity operation and maintenance. Sponsor must ensure that properties or fadlities assisted with funding board
funds, induding undeveloped sites, are built, operated, used, and maintained;

1. According to applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, induding public health standards and buildingcodes.

2. In a reasonably safe condition for the projed's intended use.

3. Throughout its estimated useful service life so as to prevent undue deterioration.

4. in compliance with all federal and state nondiscrimination laws, regulations and polides.

RCO 14-11430 Page 14 of 28



B. Open to the public. Facilities open and accessible to the general public must:

1. Be constructed and maintained to meet or exceed the minimum requirements of the most current local or state codes,
UniformFederal Accessibility Standards, guidelines, or rules, including but not limited to: the intemationai Building Code,
the Americans with Disabilities Act, and the Architectural Barriers Act, as updated.

2. Appear attractive and inviting to the public except for brief installation, construction, or maintenance periods.

3. Be available for use by the general public without reservation at reasonable hours and times of the year, according to the
type of area or facility.

SECTION 26. PROVISIONS REIJMED TO CORPORATE (INCLUDINGNONPROFIT) SPONSORS

A corporate sponsor, including any nonprofit sponsor, shall:

A. Maintain corporate status with the state, including registering with the Washington Secretary of State's office, throughout the
sponsor's obligation to the project as identified in the Agreement.

B. NotiV RCO prior to corporate dissolution at any time during the period of performance or long-term obligations. Within30 days of
dissolution the sponsor shall name a qualified successor that will agree in writingto assume any on-going project responsibilities.
Aqualified successor is any party eligible to apply for funds in the subject grant program and capable of complyingwith the terms
and conditions of this Agreement. RCO willprocess an amendment transferring the sponsor's obligation to the qualified
successor if requirements are met.

C. Sites or facilities open to the public may not require exclusive use, (e.g., members only).

SECTION 27, PROVISIONS FOR FEDERAL SUBAWARDS ONLY

The following provisions shall be in force only if the project described in this Agreement is funded with a federal subaward as identified
in Section G: Federal Fund Information.

A. Equal Employment Opportunity. Except as otherwise provided under 41 C.F.R. 60, ail contracts that meet the definition of
'f^eraiiy assisted construction contract" in 41 C.F.R. §60-1.3 must include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41
C.F.R. § 60-1.4(b), in accordance with Executive Order 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity"(30 Fed. Reg. 12319,12935,3
C.F.R. 1964,1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal
Employment Opportunity," and implementing regulations at 41 C.F.R. § 60, "Officeof Federal Contract Compliance Programs,
Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor."

Federally assisted construction contract means any agreement or modification thereof between any applicant and a person for
construction work which is paid for in whole or in part with funds obtained from the Government or borrowed on the credit of the
Government pursuant to any Federal program involving a grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee, or undertaken pursuant
to any Federal program involving such grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee, or any application or modificationthereof
approved by the Government for a grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee under which the applicant itself participates in
the construction work. (41 C.F.R. § 60-1.3)

Construction work means the construction, rehabilitation, alteration, conversion, extension, demolition or repair of buildings,
highways, or other changes or improvements to real property, including facilities providing utilityservices. The term also includes
the supervision, inspection, and other onsite functions incidental to the actual construction. (41 C.F.R. § 60-1.3)

B. Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148). When requited by Federal program legislation, ail prime construction
contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non-Federal entities (sponsors) must include a provision for compliance with the
Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. § 5,
"LaborStandards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction").

In accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the
prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to
pay wages not less than once a week. The non-Federal entity (sponsor) must place a copy of the current prevailing wage
determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The decision to award a contract or subcontract must be
conditioned upon the acceptance of the wage determination. The non-Federal entity (sponsor) must report ail suspected or
reported violations to the Federal awarding agency identified in Section G: Federal Fund Information.

The contracts must also include a provision for compliance with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback"Act (40 U. S. C. 3145), as
supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R Part 3, "Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public
Work Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States"). The Act provides that each contractor or
subrecipient (sponsor) must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the construction, completion, or
repair of public work, to give up any part of the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The non-Federal entity
(sponsor) must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency identified in Section G: Federal Fund
Information.

RCO 14-1143D Page 15 of 28



C. Contract Work Hours and SafetyStandardsAct(40U.S.C. 3701 -3708). Wtiere applicable, allcontracts awarded byttie
non-Federal entity (sponsor) in excess of $100,000 ttiat involve the employment of mechanics or laborers must include a
provision forcompliance with40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. Part 5).
Under 40 U.S.C. 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the
basis of a standard woiirweek of 40 hours. Workin excess of the standard workweek is pemiissible provided that the worker is
compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the
work week.

The requirements of 40 U.S.C. 3704 are applicable to construction work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be
required to work in surroundings or under working condiUonswhich are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements
do not apply to the purchases of supplies ormaterials orarticles ordinarily availatile on the open market, orcontracts for
transportation or transmission of intelligence.

D. Rightsto Inventions Made Undera ContractorAgreement. Ifthe Federal award meets the definition of 'funding agreemenf
under 37 C.F.R § 401.2(a) and the recipient or subrecipient (sponsor) wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or
nonprofit organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or
research work under that "funding agreement,' the recipient or subrecipient (sponsor) must comply with the requirements of 37
C.F.R Part 401, "Rights to inventions Made by NonprofitOrganizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants,
Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.

E. Clean AirAct (42 U.S.C, 7401-7671q.) and the Federal Wbter Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387), as Amended.
Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of $150,000 must contain a provision that requires the non-Federal award to
agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean AirAct (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q)
and the Federal Wdter Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal
awarding agency identified in Section G; Federal Fund Information and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA).

F. Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352).Contractorsthat applyor bidforan award exceeding $100,000 must file the
required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it willnot and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any
person or organization for influencingor attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress,
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract,
grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier must also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes
place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the non-Federal
award.

G. Procurement of Recovered Materials.Anon-Federal entity (sponsor) that is a state agency or agency of a political subdivisionof
a state and its contractors must comply with section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in guidelines of the
Environmental Protection ^ency (EPA) at40 C.F.R part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials
practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000
or the value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; procuring solid waste management
services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and establishing an affirmative procurement program for
procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPAguidelines.

H. Required Insurance. The non-Federal entity (sponsor) must, at a minimum,provide the equivalent insurance coverage for real
property and equipment acquired or improved with Federal funds as provided to property owned by the non-Federal entity.
Federally-owned property need not be insured unless required by the tenns and conditions of the Federal award (2 C.F.R §
200.310 (2013)).

I. Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689). The sponsor must not award a contract (see 2 C.F.R §
180.220) to parties fisted on the government-wide exclusions in the System for Award Management (SAM),in accordance with
the Office of Management and Budget (0MB) guidelines at 2 C.F.R § 180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 C.F.R part
1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 C.F.R part 1989 Comp., p. 235), 'Debannent and Suspension.' SAM Exclusions contains the
names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory
or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549.

RCO 14-1143D Page 16 of 28



SECTION 28. PROVISIONS FOR FIREARMS AND ARCHERY RANGE RECREATION PROJ ECTS ONLY

The following provisions shall be Inforce onlyifthe projectdescribed InthisAgreementis fundedfromthe Firearmsand Archery
Range Recreation Account.

A. Liability Insurance. The sponsor of a firearms or archery range recreation project shall procure an endorsement, or other addition,
to liability insurance it may currently carry, or shall procure a new policyof liability insurance, in a total coverage amount the
sponsor deems adequate to ensure Itwill have resources to pay successful claims of persons who may be lolledor injured, or
suffer damage to property, while present at the range facility to which this grant is related, or by reason of being in the vicinity of
that facility; providedthat the coverage shall be at least one million dollars ($1,000,000) forthe death of, or injury to, each person.

B. insurance Endorsement. The liability insurance policy, including any endorsement or addition, shall name Washington State, the
funding board, and RCO as additional insured and shall be in a form approved by the funding board or director.

C. Length of Insurance. The policy, endorsement or other addition,or a similarliability insurance policy meeting the requirements of
this section, shall be kept in force throughout the sponsor's obligation to the project as identified in this Agreement in Section E:
On-going Obligation.

O. Notice of Cancellation. The policy, as modified by any endorsement or other addition, shall providethat the issuing companyshall
give written notice to RCO not less than thirty (30) calendar days in advance of any cancellation of the policy by the insurer, and
within ten (ID) calendar days followingany termination of the policy by the sponsor.

E. Government Agencies. The requirement of Subsection A through D above shall not apply if the sponsor is a federal, state, or
municipal government which has established a program of self-insurance or a policy of self-insurance with respect to claims
arising from its facilitiesor activities generally. Includingsuch facilitiesas firearms or archery ranges, when the applicant declares
and describes that program or policy as a part of its application to the funding board.

F- Sole Duty of the Sponsor. Bythis requirement, the funding board and RCOdoes not assume any duty to any individual person
with respect to death, injury, or damage to property which that person may suffer while present at, or in the vicinityof, the facility
to which this grant relates. Anysuch person, or any other person making claims based on such death, injury,or damage, must
look to the sponsor, or others, for any and all remedies that may be available by law.

SECTION 29. PROVISIONS FOR LAND AND WATER CONSERVATION FUND PROJECTS ONLY

The following provisions shall be in force only if the project described In this Agreement is funded from the Land and Water
Conservation Fund.

Ifthe project has been approved by the National Park Service, US Department of the Interior,for funding assistance fram the federal
Land and Water Consenration Fund (LWCF),the 'Project Agreement General Provisions' in the LWCFState Assistance Program
Federal Financial Assistance Manual are also made part of this Agreement and Incorporated herein. The sponsor shall abide by these
LWCF (Beneral Provisions, in addition to this Agreement, as they now exist or are hereafter amended. Further, the sponsor agrees to
provide RCO with reports or documents needed to meet the requirements of the LWCFGeneral Provisions.

SECTION 30. PROVISIONS FOR FARMLAND PRESERVATION ACCOUNT PROJECTS ONLY

The following provisionsshall be in force only ifthe project descrilied in thisAgreement is funded from the WashingtonWildlife and
Recreation ^gram Farmiand Presenration Account.

For projects funded through the Washington Wildlife and Recreation Program Farmland Preservation Account, the following sections
will not apply ifcovered separately Ina recorded RCO approved Agricultural Consenration Easement:
A. Section IS - income and income Use;
B. Section 19 • Stewardship and Monitoring;
C. Section 21 • Acknowledgement and Signs;
D. Section 23 - Provisions applying to Acquisition Projects, Sub-sections D. F, and G;
E. Section 24 - Restriction on Conversion of Real Property and/or Facilities to Other Uses; and
F. Section 25 - Construction, Operation and Maintenance of Assisted Projects.

SECTiON 31. PROVISIONS FOR SALMON RECOVERY FUNDING BOARD PROJECTS ONLY

The following provisionsshall be Inforce only ifthe project described in this Agreement is funded by the SRFB.

For habitat restoration projects funded in part or whole with federal lunds administered by the SRFB the sponsor shall not commence
with clearing of riparian trees or in-water work unless either the sponsor has complied with 50 C.F.R. § 223.203 (bK8) (2000), limit 8
or until an Endangered Species Act consultation is finalized in writing by the NationalOceanic and AtmosphericAdministration.
Violation of this requirement may be grounds for terminating this project Agreement. This section shall not be the basis for any
enforcement responsibility by RCO.

RCO 14-1143D Page 17 of 28



SECTION 32. PROVISIONS FOR PUGET SOUND ACOUISITION AND RESTORATION PROJECTS ONLY

The following provisions shall be in force only if the project described in this Agreement is funded from the Puget Sound Acquisition
and Restoration program.

The sponsor agrees to the following terms and conditions:

A. Cost Principles/Indirect Costs for State Agencies. Sub-Recipient (sponsor) will comply with the cost principles of 2 C.F.R. Part
200 Subpart E (2013). Unless othenvise indicated, the cost principles apply to the use of funds provided under this Agreement
and in-kind matching donations. The applicability of the cost principles depends on the type of organization Incum'ng the costs.

B. Sub-recipient (sponsor) shall meet the provisions in Office of Management and Budget (0MB) Guidance, Subpart F, §200.501
(Audit Requirements), if the sponsor expends $750,000 or more in total Federal funds in a fiscal year. The $750,000 threshold for
each year is a cumulative total of all federal funding from all sources. The sponsor shall forward a copy of the audit along with the
sponsor's response and the final corrective action plan to RCO within ninety (30) days of the date of the audit report. For
complete infonnation on how to accomplish the single audit submissions, visit the Federal AuditClearinghouse WOb
site:http://harvester.census.gov/facweb

C. Credit and Acknowledgement. In addition to Section 21: Acknowledgement and Signs, materials produced must display both the
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and Puget Sound Partnership (PSP) logos and the following credit line: 'This project has
been funded whollyor in part by the United States Environmental Protection Agency. The contents of this document do not
necessarily reflect the views and policies of the Environmental Protection Agency, nor does mention of trade names or
commerdal products constitute endorsement or recommendation for use.' This requirement is for the lifeof the product, whether
during or after the Agreement period of performance.

D. HotelMotelFireSafety Act.Sponsor agrees to ensure that all conference, meeting, convention, or trainingspace funded Inwhole
or part with federal funds, compiles with the federal Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act (PL 101-391, asamend^). Sponsors may
search the Hotel-Motel National Master List @ http://www.usfa.dhs.gov/applications/hotel to see ifa property is in compliance or
to find other information about the Act.

E. Drug Free Workplace Certification.Sub-recipient (sponsor) shall make an ongoing, good faith effort to maintain a drug-free
workplace pursuant to the specific requirements set forth in 2 C.F.R. Part 1536 Subpart B. Additionally, in accordance with these
regulations, the recipient organization shall identify all knownworkplaces under its federal awards, and keep this information on
fileduring the performance of the award. Sponsors who are individuals must complywiththe drug-free provisionsset forth in 2
C.F.R. Part 1536 Subpart C. The consequences forviolating this conditionare detailed under 2 C.F.R. Part 1536 Subpart E.
Redpients can access the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Title2 Part 1536 at: http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov.

F. Management Fees. Management fees or similarcharges Inexcess of the direct costs and approved indirect rates are not
allowable. The term "management fees or similar charges' refers to the expenses added to direct costs in order to accumulate
and reserve funds for ongoing business expenses, unforeseen liabilities or for other similarcosts which are not allowable.
Managementfees or similarcharges may not be used to improve or expand the projectfunded under this agreement, except for
the extent authorized as a direct cost of carrying out the scope of work.

G. Trafficking in Persons and Trafficking Victim Protection Act of 2000 (TVPA). This provision applies only to a Sub-redpient
(sponsor), and all sub-awardees of sub-recipient (sponsor), ifany. Sub-recipient (sponsor) shall Includethe following statement in
all sub-awards made to any private entity under this/Vgreement.

"Youas the sub-redpient, your employees, sub-awardees under this award, and sub-awardees' employees may not engage In
severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time that the award is in effect; procure a commerdal sex ad during the
period of time that the award is in effed; or use forced labor in the performance of the award or sub-awards under this Award."

Sub-redpient (sponsor), and all sub-awardees of sub-redpient (sponsor) must infomi RCO immediately of any informationyou
receive from any source alleging a violation of this prohibition during the award term.

Federal agency funding this agreement may unilaterallytenninate, without penalty, the funding award if this prohibitionis
violated, Sedion 106 of the Trafficking Victims Protedion Ad of 2000, as amended.

H. Lobbying.The chief executive officerof this redpient agency (sponsor) shall ensure that no grant funds awarded under this
assistance agreement are used to engage in lobbying of the Federal Government or In litigation against the U.S. unless
authorized under existing law. The redpient (sponsor) shall abide by their respective Cost Prindples (0MB CircularsA-21,A-87,
and A-122), which generally prohibits the use of federal grant funds for litigation against the U. S. or for lobbyingor other political
adivities.

The sponsor agrees to comply with 40 C.F.R. Part 34, New Restridions on Lobbying.Sponsor shall indude the language of this
provision in award documents for all sub-awards exceeding $100,000, and require that sub-awardees submit certificationand
disdosure fonris accordingly.

In accordance with the ByrdAnti-LobbyingAmendment, any sponsor who makes a prohibited expenditure under 40 C.F.R. Part
34 or fails to file the required certification or lobbying forms shall be subjed to a dvil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not
more than $100,000 for each expenditure.

RCO 14-1143D Page 18 of 28



Allcontracts awarded by sponsor strall contain, wtien applicable, the anti-lobbying provisions as stipulated In the Appendix at 40
C.F.R. Part 30.

Pursuant to Section 18 of the Lobbying Disclosure Act. sponsor affirms that it is not a non-profit organization described in Section
501(c)(4) ofthe Internal Revenue (5ode of1986; orthat itisa non-profit organization described in Section 501(c)(4) ofthe Code
but does not and will not engage in lobbying activities as defined in Section 3 of the Lobbying Disdosure AcL

I. Reimbursement Limitation. Ifthe sponsor expends more than the amount of RCO funding in this Agreement in antidpation of
receiving additional funds from the RCO. it does so at its own risk. RCO is not legally obligated to reimburse the sponsor for costs
incurred in excess of the RCO approved budget.

J. Disadvanlaged Business Enterprise Requirements. Sponsor agrees to comply with the requirements of EPA's Utilizationof Small.
Minority and Women's Business Enterprises in procurements made under this award.

K. Minorityand Women's Business Partidpation. Sponsor agrees to solidt and recruit, to the maximum extent possible, certified
minorityowned (MBE) and women owned (WBE)businesses in purchases and contracts initiated after the effedive date of this
Agreement.

These goals are expressed as a percentage of the total dollars available for the purchase or Agreement and are as follows;
Purchased Goods 8% MBE 4% WBE

Purchased Services 10% MBE 4% WBE

Professional Sendees 10% MBE 4% WBE

Meeting these goals is voluntary and no Agreement award or rejedion shall be made based on achievement or non-achievement
of the goals. Achievement of the goals is encouraged, however, and sponsor and ALL prospective bidders or persons submitting
qualifications shall take the following affirmative steps in any procurement initiated after the effedive date of this Agreement
1. Indude qualified minority and women's businesses on solicitation lists.
2. Assure that qualified minority and women's business are solicited whenever they are potential sources of services or supplies.
3. Divide the total requirements, when economically feasible. Into smaller tasks or quantities, to perm'tt maximum partidpation by
qualified minority and women's businesses.
4. Establish delivery schedules, where work requirements permit, which willencourage partidpation of qualified minority and
women's businesses.

5. Use the services and assistance of the State Office of Minorityand Women's Business Enterprises (OMWBE)and the Office of
MinorityBusiness Enterprises of the U.S. Department of Commerce, as appropriate.

L. MBE/WBE Reporting. In accordance with the deviation from 40 C.F.R. §33.502, signed November 8,2013. DBE reporting is
limitedto annual reports and only required for assistance agreements where one or more the following conditions are met:
t. There are any funds budgeted in the contradual/services, equipment or construdion lines of the award;
2. S3,000 or more is included for supplies; or
3. There are funds budgeted for subawards or loans in which the expected budget(s) meet the conditions as
4. Described in items (a) and (b).

When completing the form, recipients (sponsors) should disregard the quarterly and semi-annual boxes in the reporting period
section 1B of the form. For annual submissions, the reports are due by October 30th of each year or 90 days after the end of the
project period, whichever comes first.

The reporting requirement is based on planned procurements. Recipients (sponsors) withfunds budgeted for non-supply
procurement and/or S3,000 or more In supplies are required to report annually whether the planned procurements take place
during the reporting period or not. Ifno procurements take place during the reporting period, the redpient should check the box in
section 5B when completing the form.

MBE/WBE reports should be sent to the DBECoordinator in the sponsor's region. Contact information can be found at
http://wvwv.epa.gov/osbp/contactpage.htm. The coordinators can also answer any questions.

Final MBE/WBE reports must be submitted within 90 days after the project period of the grant ends. To be in compliance with
regulations, the sponsor must submit a final MBE/WBE report.
Non-compliance may impact future competitive grant proposals. The current EPA From 5700-52A can be found at the EPAOffice
of Small Business Program's Home Page at http://wvi/w.epa.gov/osbp/dbe_reporting.htm.

M. SIX GOOD FAITHEFFORTS, 40 C.F.R., Part 33, Subpart C. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 33.301. the sponsor agrees to make the
followinggood faith efforts whenever procuring construction, equipment, services and supplies under an EPAfinandal assistance
agreement, and to require that sub-redpients (sponsors), and prime contractors also comply. Records documenting compliance
with the six good faith efforts shall be retained:
t. Ensure Disadvanlaged Business Enterprise (DBEs) are made aware of contrading opportunities to the fullest extent
pradicable through outreach and recruitment adivities. For Indian Tribal, State and Local and Government sponsors, this will
indude pladng DBEs on solicitation lists and solidting them whenever they are potential sources.
2. Make Infomiatlon on forthcoming opportunities available to DBEs and anange time frames for contracts and establish delivery
schedules, where the requirements permit, in a way that encourages and fadlitates partidpation by DBEs in the competitive
process. This indudes. whenever possible, posting solidtations for bids or proposals for a minimum of 30 calendar days before
the bid or proposal dosing date.
3. Consider in the contracting process whether fimis competing for large contracts could subcontrad with DBEs. For Indian
Tribal. State and local Government sponsors, this will indude dividing total requirements when economically feasible into smaller
tasksorquantities to permit maximum partidpation byDBEs inthe competitive process.

RCO 14-1143D Page 19 of 28



4. Encourage contracting with a consortium of DBEs when an Agreement is too large for one of these firms to handle individually.
5. Use the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration (SBA) and the Minority Business Development of the
Department of Commerce.
6. Ifthe sponsor awards subcontracts, require the sponsor to take the steps in paragraphs (1) through (5) of this section.

N. Lobbying& Litigation. By signing this agreement, the sponsor certifies that none of the funds received from this agreement shall
be used to engage in the lobbyingof the Federal Govemment or in litigation against the United States unless authorized under
existing law.

The chief executive officer of this sponsor agency shall ensure that no grant funds awarded under this assistance agreement are
used to engage in lobbying of the Federal Govemment or in litigationagainst the UnHed States unless authorized under exisfing
law. The sponsor shall abide by its respective Attachment in 2 CF.R. Part 200, which prohibits the use of Federal grant funds for
litigation against the United States or for lobbying or otfier political activities.

For subawards exceeding $100,000, EPArequires the following certificationand disclosure fonns:
Certification Regarding Lobbying, EPA Form 6600-06: http://www.epa.gov/ogd/AppKil/form/Lobbying_sec.pdf
Disclosure of LobbyingActivities, SF LLL: http://www.epa.gov/ogd/AppKit/fonn/sfiilin_sec.pdf

Legal expenses required in the administration of Federal programs are allowable. Legal expenses for prosecution of claims
against the Federal Govemment are unallowable.

O. Payment to Consultants. EPAparticipation in the salary rate (excluding overhead) paid to individual consultants retained by
recipients (sponsors) or by a recipients' (sponsor's) contractors or subcontractors shall be limited to the maximum daily rate for
Level IVof the Executive Schedule (formerlyGS-18), to be adjusted annually. This limit applies to consultation services of
designated individuals with specialized skills who are paid at a daily or hourly rate. This rate does not include transportation and
subsistence costs for travel performed (the recipient willpay these in accordance with their normal travel reimbursement
practices).

Subagreements with firms for services which are awarded using the procurement requirements in 40 C.F.R. Parts 30 or 31, are
not affected by this limitation unless the temis of the contract provide the recipient (sponsor) with responsibility for the selection,
direction and control of the individual who will be providing sen/ices under the contract at an hourly or daily rate of compensation.
See 40 C.F.R. § 30.27(b) or 40 C.F.R. § 31.369(|), as applicable, for additional information.

As of January 1,2014, the limit is $602.24 per day $75.28 per hour.

P. Peer Review. Where appropriate, prior to finalizing any significant technical products the Principal Investigator (PI) of this project
must solicit advice, review, and feedback from a technical review or advisory group consisting of relevant subject matter
specialists. A record of comments and a brief description of how respective comments are addressed by the PI willbe provided to
the Project Monitorprior to releasing any final reports or products resulting from the funded study.

SECTION 33. PROVISIONS FOR ESTUARY AND SALMON RESTORATION PROGRAM • EPA AND MARINE

SHORELINE

The following provisions shall be in force only if the project described Inthis Agreement is funded from the Estuary and Salmon
Restoration Program - EPA or the Marine Shoreline Protection program.

The sponsor shall comply with all applicable federal. State, and local laws, rules, and regulations in canying out the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

A. Administrative Conditions

1. Cost Principles. The sponsor agrees to comply with the cost prindples of 2 C.F.R Part 200 (2013). Unless otherwise
indicated, the Cost Principles apply to the use of funds provided under this Agreement and In-kind matching donations. The
applicabilityof the Cost Principles depends on the type of organization incurring the costs.

2. /\udit Requirements. The sponsor shall fully comply with requirements of 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart F- Audit Requirements
(2013), if applicable. See also Section F: Project Funding.

3. Hotel-Motel Rre Safety Act. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. 30.18, if applicable, and 15 U.S.C 2225a, sponsor agrees to ensure that
all space for conferences, meetings, conventions, or training seminars funded in whole or in part with federal funds complies
with the protection and control guidelines of the Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act (PL 101-391, as amended. The sponsor
may search the Hotel-Motel National Master List at: http://www.usfa.dhs.gov/applications/hotel to see if a property is in
compliance (FEMAID is currently not required), or to find other inforniation about the Act.

4. Recycled Paper

a. Institutions of Higher Education Hospitals and Non-Profit Organizations. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. 30.16, sponsor
agrees to use recycled paper and double-sided printingfor all reports which are prepared as a part of this Agreement
and delivered to EPA. This requirement does not apply to reports prepared on forms supplied by EPA, or to Standard
Forms, which are printed on recycled paper and are available through the General Services Administration.

RCO 14-1143D Page 20 of 28



b. State Agencies and Political Subdivisions, in accordance with Section 6002 of the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act (RCRA) (42 U.S .C. 6962) any State agency or agency of a political subdivision of a State which is using
appropriated Federal funds shall comply with the requirements set forth. Regulations issued under RCRA Section 6002
apply to any acquisition of an item where the purchase price exceeds $10,000 or where the quantity of such items
acquired in the course of the preceding fiscal year was SI 0,000 or more. RCRA Section 6002 requires that preference
be given in procurement programs to the purdiases of specific products containing recycled materials identified in
guidelines developed by EPA. These guidelines are listed in 40 C.F.R. 247.

c. State and Local institutions of Higher Education and Non-Profit Organizations, in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 30.16,
State and local institutions of higher education, hospitals, and non-profit organizations that receive direct Federal funds
shall give preference in their procurement programs funded with F^eralfunds tothe purchase ofrecycled products
pursuant to EPA's guidelines.

d. State Tribal and Local Government Recipients. In accordance with the policies set forth in EPA Order 1000.25 and
Executive Order 13423, Strengthening Federal Environmental, Energy and Transportation Management (January 24,
2007), the sponsor agrees to use recycled paper and double sided printing for ail reports which are prepared a part of
this Agreement and delivered to EPA. This requirement does not apply to reports prepared on forms supplied by EPA,
or to Standard Forms, which are printed on recycled paper and are available through the General Senrices
Administration.

5. Lobbying.The sponsor agrees to complywith Title40 C.F.R. Part 34. New Restrictions on Lobbying.The sponsor shall
include the language of this provision in award documents for all sub-awards exceeding $100,000, and require that
sub-awardees submit certification and disclosure forms accordingly.

In accordance with the ByrdAnti-Lobbying Amendment, any recipient who makes a prohibited expenditure under Title40
C.F.R. Part 34 or fails to file the required certification or lobbying forms shall be subject to a dvii penalty of not less than
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each expenditure. See also Section 11: Compliance with Applicable Federal Laws.

a. Part 30 Recipients. Ailcontracts awarded by the sponsor shall contain, when applicable, the antl-lobbying provisions as
stipulated in the Appendix at Title 40 CFR Part 30.

Pursuant to Section 18 of the Lobbying Disclosure Act, the sponsor affirms that it is not a non-profit organization
described in Section 501(c)(4) of the intemai Revenue Code of 1986; or that it is a non-profit organization described in
Section 501(c)(4) of the Code but does not and willnot engage in lobbying activities as defined in Section 3 of the
Lobbying Disclosure Act.

b. Lobbying and Litigation. The sponsor's chief executive officer shall ensure that no grant funds awarded under this
Agreement are used to engage in lobbyingof the Federal Government or in litigation against the United States unless
authorized under existing law. The sponsor shall abide by its respective Appendix in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, which prohibits
the use of Federal grant funds for litigation against the United States or for lobbying or other political activities.

6. Suspension and Debarment. The sponsor shall fullycomply with Subpart C of 2 C.F.R. Part 180 and 2 C.F.R. Part 1532,
entitled 'Responsibilities of Participants Regarding Transaction (Doing Business withOther Persons)'. The sponsor is
responsible for ensuring that any lower tier covered transaction as described in Subpart B of 2 C.F.R. Part 180 and 2 C.F.R.
Part 1532, entitled 'Covered Transactions', includes a term or condition requiring compliance with Subpart C. The sponsor is
responsible for further requiring the inclusion of a similar term or condition in any subsequent lower tier covered
transactions. The sponsor acknowledges that failing to disclose the information as required at 2 C.F.R. § 180.335 may result
in the delay or negation of this assistance agreement, or pursuance of legal remedies, including suspension and debarment.

The sponsor may access the Excluded Parties List System at: http://www.epis.gov. This term and condition supersedes EPA
Form 5700-49, 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters'. Seealso Action 27:
Provisions for Federal Subawards Only.

7. Drug-Free Workplace Certification. The sponsor must make an ongoing, good faith effort to maintain a drug-free workplace
pursuant to the specific requirements set forth in 2 C.F.R. Part 1536 Subpart B. AddUionaily, in accordance with these
regulations, the sponsor must identify ail known workplaces under its federal award; and keep this information on file during
the performance of the award.

a. Sponsors who are individuals must comply vriththe drug-free provisions set forth in 2 C.F.R. Part 1536 Subpart C.

b. The consequences for violating this condition are detailed under 2 C.F.R. Part 1536 Subpart E. The sponsor can
access 2 C.F.R Part 1536 at http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov.

8. Management Fees. Management fees or similar charges In excess of the direct costs and approved indirect rates are not
allowable. The term 'Inanagement fees or similar charges' refers to expenses added to the direct costs in order to
accumulate and reserve funds for ongoing business expenses, unforeseen iiabii'tties, or for other similar costs which are not
allowable under this assistance agreement. Management fees or similar charges may not be used to improve or expand the
project funded under this Agreement, except to the extent authorized as a direct cost of carrying out the scope of work.

9. Reimbursement Limitation. If the sponsor expends more than the grant amount in this Agreement in its approved budget in
anticipation of receiving additional funds, it does so at its own risk. The Federal Government and RCO is not legally
obligated to reimburse the sponsor for costs incurred in excess of the approved budget. See also Section 11: Project
Reimbursements.

RCO 14-1143D Page 21 of 28



10. Trafficking In Persons. The following prohibitionstatement applies to the sponsor, and all sub-awardees of the sponsor. The
sponsor must Include this statement In all sub-awards made to any private entity under this Agreement.

"YOU AS THE SUB-RECIPIENT, YOUR EMPLOYEES, SUB-AWARDEES UNDER THIS AWARD, AND SUB-AWARDEES'
EMPLOYEES MAY NOT ENGAGE IN SEVERE FORMS OF TRAFFICKING IN PERSONS DURING THE PERIOD OF TIME

THAT THE AWARD IS IN EFFECT; PROCURE A COMMERCIAL SEX ACT DURING THE PERIOD OF TIME THAT THE
AWARD IS IN EFFECT; OR USE FORCED LABOR INTHE PERFORMANCE OF THE AWARDOR SUB-AWARDS UNDER
THIS AWARD."

11. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Requirements, General Compliance. The sponsor agrees to complywith the
requirements of ERA'S Program for Utilization of Small, Minority and Women's Business Enterprises in procurement under
assistance agreements, contained in 40 C.F.R. Part 33.

12. Sub-Awards. If the sponsor makes sub-awards under this Agreement, the sponsor Is responsible for selecting its
sub-awardees and, if applicable, for conducting sub-award competitions. The sponsor agrees to:

a. Establish all sub-award agreements In writing;

b. Maintain primary responsibility for ensuring successful completion of the approved project (SPONSORS CANNOT
DELEGATE OR TRANSFER THIS RESPONSIBILITY TO ASUB-AWARDEE);

c. Ensure that any sub-awards comply with the standards In 2 C.F.R. Part 200, and are not used to acquire commercial
goods or services for the sub-awardee;

d. Ensure that any sub-awards to 501(c)(4) organizations do not involve lobbying activities;

e. Monitor the performance of sub-awardees, and ensure sub-awardees comply with all applicable regulations, statutes,
and terms and conditions which flow down In the sut>-award;

f. Obtain RCO's consent before making a sub-award to a foreign or International organization, or a sub-award to be
performed In a foreign country; and

g. Obtainapprovalfrom RCOforany new sub-award workthat Is not outlined Inthe approvedworkplan inaccordance
with 40 C.F.R. Parts 30.25 and 31.30, as applicable.

13. Federal Employees. No Subcontract or grant funds may be used to provide any Federal Employee transportation
assistance, reimbursement, and any other expense.

14. FlyAmerica Act. The sponsor agrees to comply with 49U.S.C.401t8 (the 'Fly America"act) In accordance with the General
Services Administration's regulations at 41 C.F.R. Part 301-10, which provide that recipients and subredpients of Federal
funds and their contractors are required to use U.S. Flag air carriers for U.S. Government-financed International air travel
and transportation of their personal effects or property, to the extent such service Is available, unless travel by foreign air
carrier is a matter of necessity, as defined by the FlyAmerica Act. The sponsor shall submit, ifa foreign air carrier was used,
an appropriate certificationor memorandum adequately explaining why service by U.S. flag air carrier was not available or
why itwas necessary to use a foreign air carrier and shall. In any event, provide a certificate of compliance with the Fly
America requirements. The sponsor agrees to indude the requirements of this section in all subcontracts that may involve
Intemational air transportation.

15. Recovered Materials. The sponsor agrees to comply with all the requirements of Section 6002 of the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), as amended (42 U.S.C. 6962), induding but not limitedto the regulatory provisions
of 40 C.F.R. Part 247, and Executive Order 12673, as they apply to the procurement of the Items designated In Subpart B of
40 C.F.R. Part 247. See also Section 27; Provisions for Federal Subawards Only.

16. Copeland "Antl-Klckback" Act. All contracts and subgrants Inexcess of S2,000 for construction or repair awarded by
redplents and subredpients shali Indude a provision for compliance with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (18 U.S.C. 874),
as suppiemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C,F,R, Part 3, "Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building
or Public Work Financed In Whole or In Part by Loans or Grants from the United States"). The Act provides that each
contractor or subrecipient shall be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the construction,
completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the compensation to which he Is otherwise entitled. The redplent
shall report all suspected or reported violations to the Federai awarding agency. See also Section 27; Provisions for Federal
Subawards Only.

17. Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 276a to a-7). When required by Federal program legislation, all construction
contracts awarded by the recipients and subrecipients of more than S2,C00shall indude a provisionfor compliance with the
Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a to a-7) and as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. Part 5,
"Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Governing Federally Financed and Assisted Construction"). Under this
Act, contractors shall be required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the minimum wages
spedfied in a wage determination made by the Seaetary of Lebor. In addition, contractors shall be required to pay wages
not less than once a week. The redplent ^all place a copy ofthe current prevailing wage determination issued by the
Department of Labor in each solidtatlon and the award of a contract shall be conditioned upon the acceptance of the wage
determination. The redplent shall report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency. See also
Section 27; Provisions for Federal Subawards Only.

RCO 14-1t43D Page 22 of 28



18. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-333). Where applicable, all contracts awarded by recipients
In excess of S2C00 for construction contracts and In excess of 82,500 for other contracts that Involve the employment of
mecftanics or laborers shall Include a provision for compliance with Sections 102 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and
Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-333), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. Part 5). Under
Section 102 of the Act. each contractor shall be required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis
of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week Is permissible provided that the worker is
compensated at a rate of not less than 11/2 times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked In excess of 40 hours In the
work week. Section 107 of the Act is applicable to construcb'on work and provides that no laborer or mechanic shall be
required to work in surroundings or under workingconditions wfiichare unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These
requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or
contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence. See also Section 27; Provisions for Federal Subawards Only.

i g. Rights to InventionsMade Under a Contract or /^reemenL Contracts or agreements for the performance of experimental,
developmental, or research work shall provide for the rights of the Federal Govemment and the redplent In any resulting
Invention in accordance with 37 C.F.R. Part 401, "Rights to Inventions made by NonprofitOrganizations and Small Business
Firms Under Govemment Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," and any Implementing regulations issued by the
awarding agency. See also Section 27: Provisions for Federal Subawards Only.

20, FY12APPR ACT: Unpaid Federal Taxliabilities and Federal Felony Convictions. ThisAgreement is subject to the provisions
contained In the Department of Interior,Environment, and Related Agencies AppropriationsAct, 2012, HR 2055, Division E.
Sections 433 and 434 regarding unpaid federal tax liabilities and federal felony convictions. Accordingly, by accepting this
award the recipient acknowledges that It (1) Is not subject to any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for
which alljudicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, and that Is not being paid in a timely
manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecb'ng the tax liability, and (2) has not been
convicted (or had an officeror agent acting on its behalf convicted)of a felony criminal conviction under and Federal law
within24 months preceding the award, unless EPAhas considered suspension or debarment of the corporation, or such
officeror agent, based on these tax liabilities or convictionsand determined that such action is not necessary to such action
Is not necessary to protect the Govemment's Interests. Ifthe recipient fails to complywith these provisions, EPAwill annul
this agreement and may recover any funds the recipient has expended in violationof sections 433 and 434.

B. Programmatic Conditions:
Semi-Annual FEATS Performance Reports. The sponsor Is required to submit performance reports every six months,
unless a different reporting frequency is outlined in the Scope of Work, using the reporting tool supplied by RCO. The
sponsor agrees to Include brief Information on each of the followingareas:

a. Comparison of actual accomplishments to the outputs/outcomes established in the assistance agreement work plan for
the period;

b. The reasons for slippages if the established outputs/outcomes were not met; AND

c. Additional pertinent information. Includingwhen appropriate, analysis and Information of cost overruns or high unit
costs.

Reporting periods are from October 1 to March 31 and April 1 to September 30. Performance reports are due to RC015
days after the end of each reporting period.

2. Final Perfomiance Report. In addition to the periodic performance reports, the sub-recipient will submit a finalperformance
report to RCO within60 calendar days after the expiration or termination of the award. The report shall be submitted to the
RCO Grant Manager and must be providedelectronically. The report shall generally contain the same Information as In the
periodic reports, but should cover the entire project period.

3. Recognitionof EPAFunding. Reports, documents, signage. videos, or other media, developed as part of projects funded by
this Agreement shall contain the following statement:

•THIS PROJECT HAS BEEN FUNDED WHOLLY OR IN PART BY THE UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
AGENCY UNDER ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT TO WASHINGTON DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE. THE

CONTENTS OF THIS DOCUMENT DO NOT NECESSARILY REFLECT THE VIEWS AND POLICIES OF THE
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY, NOR DOES MENTION OF TRADE NAMES OR COMMERCIAL PRODUCTS
CONSTITUTE ENDORSEMENT OR RECOMMENDATION FOR USE."

4. Copyrighted Material. EPAhas the right to reproduce, publish, use, and authorize others to use copyrighted works or other
data developed under this assistance agreement for Federal purposes.

RCO acknowledges that EPAmay authorize another grantee to use copyrighted works or other data developed under this
Agreement as a result of; a) the selection of another grantee by EPAto perfonn a project that will Involvethe use of the
copyrighted works or other data or; b) termination or expiration of this agreement.

5. Peer Review. The results of this project may affect management decisions relating to Puget Sound. Prior to finalizing any
significant technical products the Principal Investigator (PI) of this project must solicitadvice, review and feedback from a
technical review or advisory group consisting of relevant subject matter specialists. Arecord of comments and a brief
description of how respective comments are addressed by the PI willbe provided to the RCO Grants Manager prior to
releasing any final reports or products resulting from the funded study.

RCO 14-1143D Page 23 of 28



6. QualityAssurance Requirements. Acceptable QualityAssurance documentation must be submitted to the Grant Program
within 30 days of acceptance of this agreement or another date as negotiated with the RCO Grants Manager. The National
Estuaiy Program (NEP) Quality Coordinator supports quality assurance for EPA-funded NEP projects. No work Involving
direct measurements or data generation, environmental modeling, compilation of data from literature or electronic media,
and data supporting the design, constmction, and operation of environmental technology shall be Initiated under an
agreement until RCO or the NEP Quality Coordinator has approved the quality assurance document. The sponsor will
submit all Quality Assurance documentation to the following address. Please copy the Grant Program on all correspondence
with the NEP Quality Coordinator. Thomas H. Gries, NEP Quality Coordinator Department of Ecology Tgri460@ecy.wa.gov
360.407.6327.

7. Environmental Data and Information Technology. Sub-recipients are required to institute standardized reporting
requirements into their wort< plans and include such costs in their budgets. Allenvironmental data willbe required to be
entered into the EPA's Storage and Retrieval data system (STORET). The best method (local or state consolidated) for
repoib'ng willbe determined on a project-by-proJect basis between the DPW grant manager and sub-recipient. More
information about STORET can be found at http;//www.epa.gov/STORET.

SECTION 34. PROVISIONS FOR ESTUARY AND SALMON RESTORATION PROGRAM - EPA PROJECTS ONLY

The following provisions shall be in force only if the project described in this Agreement is funded from the Estuary and Salmon
Restoration Program - EPA.

A. DUNS and CCR Requirements

1. Unless otherwise exempted from this requirement under 2 C.F.R. § 25.110, the sponsor must maintain the currency of its
infomiation in the CCR until submission of Its final financial report required under this Agreement or receive the final
payment, whichever is later.

2. The sponsor may not make a sub-award to any entity unless the entity has provided Its DUNS number to the sponsor.

B. FY2011 ACORN Funding Restriction. No funds provided under this Agreement may be used for sub-awards/sub-grants or
contracts to the Association of CommunKyOrganizations for Reform NOW (ACORN) or any of its subsidiaries.

SECTION 35. PROVISIONS FOR MARINE SHORELINE PROTECTION PROGRAM PROJECTS ONLY

The following provisions shall be in force only if the project described in this Agreement is funded from the Marine Shoreline
Protection program.

The Sub-Recipient shall comply with all applicable federal. State, and local laws, rules, and regulations in carrying out the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

A. Federal Finance Report (FFR). Recipients (sponsor) shall submit final Federal Finandal Reports (FFR), Standard Form 425
(SF-425), to EPA no later than 90 calendar days after the end of the project period. The fomi Is available on the Internet at
www.epa.gov/ocfo/(inservices/forms.hlm. AllFFRs must be submitted to the Las Vegas Rnance Center US EPA, LVFC, 4220 S.
Maryland Pkwy BIdg C, Rm 503, Las Vegas, NV89119, or by FAX to: 702-798-2423. The LVFCwillmake adjustments, as
necessary, to obligated funds after reviewing and accepting a final Federal Financial Report. Recipients (sponsor) will be notified
and instructed by EPA if they must complete any additional fonns for the closeout of the assistance agreement. EPA may take
enforcement actions in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 30.62 and 40 C.F.R. § 31.43 if the recipient does not comply with this term
and condition.

B. Reimbursement Limitation. Ifthe sponsor expends more than the amount of federal funding in its approved budget in anticipation
of receiving additional funds, it does so at its own risk. The Federal Government and RCO Is not legally obligated to reimburse
Sub-Recipient for costs incurred in excess of the approved budget.

C. DUNS and CCR Requirements

1. Requirement for Central Contractor Registration (CCR)/System for Award Management (SAM). Unless the sponsor is
exempted from this requirement under 2 C.F.R. § 25.110, the sponsor must maintain the currency of its infonmation in the
SAM until the sponsor submits the final financial report required under this award or receive the final payment, whichever is
later. This requires that the sponsor review and update the infomiation at least annually after the Initial registration, and
more frequently If required by changes in your information or another award term.

2. Requirement for Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) numbers. If the sponsor is authorized to make subawards
under this award, the sponsor

a. Must notify potential subrecipients that no entity may receive a subaward from the sponsor unless the entity has
provided its DUNS number to the sponsor.

b. May not make a subaward to an entity unless the entity has provided its DUNS number to the spnosor.

RCO 14-1143D Page 24 of 28



3. Definitions. For purposes of fftis award term:

a. Central Contractor Registration (CCR)/System forAward li^anagement (SAM) means tfie Federal repository Intowhich
an entity must provide informationrequired for the conduct of business as a recipient. Additional informationabout
registration procedures may be found at the System for Award Management (SAM) internet site http://www.sam.gov.

b. Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS)number means the nine-digit number established and assigned by Dun and
Bradstreet, inc. (D&B) to uniquely identify business entities. A DUNS number may be obtained from (3&B by telephone
(currently 866-705-5711) or the intemet (currently at http://fedgov.dnb.com/webfonn).

c. Entity.as it is used in this award term, means ail of the following,as defined at 2 C.F.R Part 25, subpart C:

i. AGovernmental organization, which is a State, local government, or Indian tribe;
ii.A foreign public entity;
iii. Adomestic or foreign nonprofit organization;
iv. Adomestic or foreign for-profitorganization; and
V. A Federal agency, but only as a subredpient under an award or subaward to a non-Federal entity.

d. Subaward;

I.This term means a legal Instrument to provide support for the performance of any portion of the substantive project or
program for which you received this award and that you as the redpient award to an eligible subredpient.
il. The term does not Indude your procurement of property and services needed to carry out the project or program (for
further explanation, see Sec. -.210 of the attachment to OMS Circular A-133, 'Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations").
iil.A subaward may be provided through any legal agreement, induding an agreement that you consider a contract.

e. Subredpient means an entity that:

i. Receives a subaward from you under this award; and
ii. Is accountable to you for the use of the Federal funds provided by the subaward.

CIVIL RIGHTS OBLIGATIONS

1. General. This term and condition Incorporates by reference the signed assurance provided by the redpient's authorized
representative on; 1) EPAForm 4700-4, "Preaward Compliance Review Report forAll Applicants and Recipients Requesting
EPA Finandal Assistance"; and 2) Standard Form 4248 or Standard Form 424D, as applicable. These assurances and this
term and condition obligate the recipient to comply fully with applicable civil rights statutes and Implemeriting EPA
regulations.

2. Statutory Requirements. In carrying out this agreement, the redpient must comply with;

a. TitleVIof the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits discrimination based on race, color, and national origin, induding
limitedEnglish profidency (LEP), by entities receiving Federal finandal assistance.

b. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, which prohibits discrimination against persons with disabilities by entities
receiving Federal finandal assistance; and

c. The Age Discrimination Actof 1975, which prohibits age discrimination by entities receiving

d- Federal finandal assistance.

Ifthe redpient is conducting an education program under this agreement, it must also complywithTitleIX of Ifie Eduoation
/Vnendments of 1972, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex In education programs and activities operated by
entities receiving Federal finandal assistance.

Ifthis agreement is funded withfinancial assistance under the Clean WaterAct (CWA), the redpient must also complywith
Section 13 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of
sex In CWA-funded programs or activities.

3. Regulatory Requirements. The redpient agrees to comply with all applicable EPAdvil rights regulations, induding:

a. For Title IX obligations, 40 C.F.R. Part 5; and

b. For TitleVI,Section 504, Age DiscriminationAd, and Sedion 13 obligations, 40 C.F.R. Part 7.

c. As noted on the EPA Form 4700-4 signed by the redpient's authorized representative, these regulations establish
specific requirements induding maintaining compliance information, establishing grievance procedures, designating a
CivilRights Coordinator, and providing notices of non-discrimination.

RCO 14-1143D Page 25 of 28



4. TitleVI - LEP, Public Partidpation and AffirmativeCompliance Obligation.

a. As a redpient of EPA finandal assistance, you are required by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act to provide meaningful
access to LEP individuals. In implementing that requirement, the redpient agrees to use as a guide the Office of Civil
Rights (OCR) document entitled "Guidance to Environmental Protection Agency Finandal Assistance Redpients
Regarding TitleVI Prohibition Against National Origin Discrimination Affecting limited English Profident Persons." The
guidance can be found at http://firwebgate.access.gpo.gov/cgi-binlgetdoc.cgl?dbname=2004
register&dodd=fi25jn04-79.|df

b. If the redpient is administering permitting programs under this agreement, the redpient agrees to use as a guide
OCR's TitleVIPublic Involvement Guidance for EPAAssistance Redpients AdministeringEnvironmental Permitting
Programs. The Guidance can be found at http://edocket.access.qpo.gov/2006/pdf/06-2691.pdf. In accepting this
assistance agreement, the redpient acknowledges it has an affirmative obligation to implement effective Title VI
compliance programs and ensure that its actions do not involve discriminatory treatment and do not have
discdminatory effects even when fadalty neutral. The redpient must be prepared to demonstrate to EPAthat such
compliance programs exist and are being implemented or to otherwise demonstrate how it is meeting its TitleVI
obligations.

E. Additional Temt and Condition forAgricultural Landowners - Riparian BufferTerm forAgricultural Landowners. To be eligible for
NEP implementation funding, provided directly or through a subaward. a private agricultural land owner whose property borders
fresh or estuarine waters must establish and maintain a riparian buffer on all water courses on the property consistent with the
National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) guidelines for Riparian Buffers AlongAgricultural Writer Courses in NW Washington
and NRCS guidance on the NMFSguidelines. Aland owner may be exduded from meeting this requirement if the funding is used
solely for removal of shoreline armoring, onsite sewage system repair or replacement, engineered dike setbacks, or culvert or
tide-gate replacements that provide for fish passage at all life stages. In some cases, the NJ\.1FS recommendations ate framed
in tenes of ranges of buffer widths rather than point estimates, and expressed as probabilities of achieving desired outcomes.
Local conditions and local circumstances matter, and may affect the choice of the riparian buffer most effective at achieving
salmon recovery. Bufferwidths may lie less than specified in the table in cases where there is a scientific basis for doing so and
all affected tribes in the watershed agree to deviations from the NMFSguidelines or where there are physical constraints on an
individual parcel (e.g. transportation corridors, structures, naturally occum'ng.

SECTION 36. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE

This Agreement is entered into, pursuant to. and under the authority granted by applicable federal and state laws. The provisions of
the Agreement shall be construed to conform to those laws. In the event of an inconsistency in the terms of this Agreement, or
between its terms and any applicable statute, mie, or policyor procedure, the inconsistency shall be resolved by giving precedence in
the following order:
A. Federal law and binding executive orders:
B. Code of federal regulations;
C. Terms and conditions of a grant award to the state from the federal government:
D. Federal grant program policies and procedures adopted by a federal agency;
E. State law:
F. Washington Administrative Code;
G. Project Agreement;
H. Board policies and procedures.

SECTION 37. AMENDMENTS

/Vnendments to this Agreement shall be binding only if in writingand signed by personnel authorized to bind each of the parties
except period of performance extensions in and minorscope adjustments need only be signed by RCO's director or designee. unless
the consent of the sponsor to an extension or scope adjustment is required by its auditing policies, regulations, or legal requirements,
in which case, no extension shall be effective until so consented.

SECTION 38. LIMITATION OF AUTHORITY

Only RCO or RCO's delegate by writing(delegation to be made prior to action) shall have the express, implied,or apparent authority
to alter, amend, modify,or viraive any clause or condition of this Agreement. Furthermore, any alteration, amendment, modification,or
waiver of any clause or condition of this Agreement is not effective or binding unless made in writing and signed by RCO.

SECTION 39. WAIVER OF DEFAULT

Waiver of any default shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent default. Wriiveror breach of any provision of the
Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other or subsequent breach and shall not be constmed to be a modification of
the terms of the Agreement unless stated to be such Inwriting, signed by the director, or the director's designee. and attached to the
original Agreement.

SECTION 40. APPLICATION REPRESENTATIONS - MISREPRESENTATIONS OR INACCURACY OR BREACH

The funding board and RCO rely on the sponsor's application in making its determinations as to eligibility for. selection for. and scope
of. funding grants. Any misrepresentation, en'or or inaccuracy in any part of the application may be deemed a breach of this
Agreement.

RCO 14-11430 Page 26 of 28



SECTION 41. SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE

The funding board and RCO may enforce this Agreement by the remedy of specific performance, which usuallywill mean completion
of the project as described in this Agreement. However, the remedy of spedfic perfonnance shall not tie the sole or exdusive remedy
available to RCO. No remedy available to the funding board or RCO shall be deemed exdusive. The funding board or RCO may eled
to exerdse any, a combination of, or alt of the remedies available to it under this Agreement, or under any provision of taw, common
law, or equity.

SECTION 42. TERMINATION

The funding board and RCO will require strict compliance by the sponsor withall the terms of this Agreement induding, but not limited
to, the requirements of the applicable statutes, rules and all funding board and RCO polides, and with the representations of the
sponsor in its application for a grant as finally approved by the funding board. For federal awards, notification of termination will
comply with 2 C,F,R. § 200.340.

A. ForCause. Thefunding board or the director maysuspendor terminate the obligation to provide funding to the sponsorunder
this Agreement:
1. In the event of any breach by the sponsor of any of the sponsor's obligations under this Agreement; or
2. Ifthe sponsor fails to make progress satisbctory to the funding board or director toward completion of the project by the
completion date set out in this Agreement. Induded in progress is adherence to milestones and other defined deadlines

In the event this Agreement is terminated by the funding board or director, under this section or any other section after any
portion of the grant amount has been paid to the sponsor under this Agreement, the funding board or diredor may require that
any amount paid be repaid to RCO for redeposit into the account from which the funds were derived.

B. NonAvailability of Funds. The obligationof the RCO to make payments is contingent on the availability of state and federal funds
through legislative appropriation and state allotment. Ifamounts sufficient to fund the grant made under this Agreement are not
appropriated to RCO for expenditure for this Agreement in any biennial fiscal period, RCO shall not be obligated to pay any
remaining unpaid portion of this grant unless and until the necessary action by the Legislature or the Officeof Financial
Management occurs. If RCO participation is suspended under this section for a continuous period of one year, RCO's obligation
to provide any future funding under this Agreement shall terminate. Terminationof the Agreement under this section is not subject
to appeal by the sponsor.

C. ForConvenience. Exceptas otherwiseprovided inthisAgreement, RCOmay, by ten (10)days written notice,beginning on the
second day after the mailing,temrtinatethis Agreement, in whole or in part. Ifthis Agreement is so terminated, RCO shall be liable
only for payment required under the terms of this Agreement for services rendered or goods delivered prior to the effective date of
termination.

SECTION 43. DISPUTE HEARING

Except as may otherwise be provided in this Agreement, when a dispute arises between the sponsor and the funding board, which
cannot be resolved, either party may request a dispute hearing according to the process set out in this section. Either party's request
for a dispute hearing must be in writing and dearly state:
A. The disputed issues;
8. The relative positions of the parties;
C. Ttre sponsor's name, address, project title, and the assigned project number.

In order for this section to apply to the resolution of any spedfic dispute or disputes, the other party must agree in writing that the
procedure under this section shall be used to resolve those spedfic issues. The dispute shall be heard by a panel of three persons
consisting of one person chosen by the sponsor, one person chosen by the diredor, and a third person chosen by the two persons
initiallyappointed. If a third person cannot be agreed on, the third person shall be chosen by the funding board's chair.

Any hearing under this section shall be informal, with the spedfic processes to be determined by the disputes panel according to the
nature and complexity of the issues involved. The process may be solely based on written material if the parties so agree. The
disputes panel shall be govemed by the provisions of this Agreement in dedding the disputes.

The parties shall be bound by the dedsion of the disputes panel, unless the remedy directed by that panel shall be without the
authority of either or both parties to perform, as necessary, or is othenwise unlawful.

Request for a disputes hearing under this section by either party shall be delivered or mailed to the other party. The request shall be
delivered or mailed within thirty (30) days of the date ttre requesting party has received notice of the action or position of the other
party which it wishes to dispute. The written Agreement to use the process under this section for resolution of those issues shall be
delivered or mailed by the receiving party to the requesting party vi/ithin thirty (30) days of receipt by the receiving party of the request.

Allcosts assodated with the implementation of this process shall be shared equally by the parties.

SECTION 44. A'nORNEYS' FEES

In the event of litigation or other action brought to enforce contract temis, each party agrees to bear its own attorney fees and costs.

RCO 14-1143D Page 27 of 28



SECTION 4S. GOVERNING LAW/VENUE

This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted In accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. In the event of a lawsuit
Involving this Agreement, venue shall be InThurston County Superior Court Iflegally proper; othenvlse venue shall be Ina county
where the project is situated. The sponsor, by execution of this Agreement acknowledges the jurisdiction of the courts of the State of
Washington.

SECTION 46. PROVISIONS APPLICABLE ONLY IF FEDERALLY RECOGNIZED INDIAN TRIBE IS THE SPONSOR

In the cases vrhere this Agreement is between the funding board (State) and a federally recognized Indian Tribe, the following
governing law/venue applies, but only between those parties:

A. Notwithstanding the abovevenue provision, ifthe State ofVt^shington intends to initiate a lawsuit againsta federally recognized
Indian tribe relating to the performance, breach or enforcement of this Agreement, it shall so notify the Tribe. If the Tribe believes
that a good faith basis exists for subject matter jurisdictionof such a lawsuit in federal court, the Tribe shall so notifythe State
within five days of receipt of such notice and state the basis for such jurisdiction. Ifthe Tribe so notifies the State, the State shall
bring such lawsuit in federal court; otherwise the State may sue the Tribe in the Thurston County Superior Court. Interpretation of
the Agreement shall be according to applicable State law, except to the extent preempted by federal law. In the event suit Is
brought in federal court and the federal court determines that It lacks subject matter jurisdiction to resolve the dispute between
the State and Tribal Party, then the parties agree to venue in Thurston County Superior Court.

B. Any judicial award, detennlnatlon, order,decree or other relief, whether in lawor equityor othenvlse, resulting from a lawsuit
arising out of this agreement. Including any third party claims relating to any work performed under this agreement, shall be
binding and enforceable on the parties. Any money judgment or award against a tribe, tribal officers and members, or the State
of VWshington and Its officers and employees may exceed the amount provided for in Section F - Project Funding of the
Agreement in order to satisfy the judgment.

C. The Tribe hereby waives Its sovereign immunity forsuit Infederal and state courtfor the limited purpose of allowing the State to
bring such actions as Itdetennines necessary to give effect to this section and to the enforcement of any judgment relating to the
performance, or breach of this Agreement. This waiver Is not for the benefit of any third party and shall not be enforceable by any
third party or by any assignee of the parties. In any enforcement action, the parties shall bear their own enforcement costs,
including attorneys' fees.

For purposes of this provision, the State Includes the RCO and any other state agencies that may be assigned or otherwise obtain the
right of the RCO to enforce this Agreement.

SECTION 47. SEVERABILITY

The provisions of this Agreement are intended to be severable. If any term or provision is Illegal or invalid for any reason whatsoever,
such Illegality or invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the Agreement.

RCO 14-1143D Page 28 of 28



Eligible Scope Activities

Project Sponsor: Selah Parks & Recreation Department

Project Title: Volunteer Park Development

Program: WWRP - Local Parks

Project Metrics

Sites improved

Project acres deveioped:
Project acres renovated:

Deveiopment Metrics

Worksite #1, Voiunteer Park

Buildings and Structures

Construct / install restroom

Number of restrooms:

Select ttie restroom type:

General Site Improvements

Construct picnic shelter
Number of group picnic shelters:

Develop paths/waikways
Select the surface of the path/walkway:
Linear feet of path/walkway:
Walkway lighting provided (yes/no):
Number of walkway bridges:

Install site furnishings
Landscaping improvements

Acres of landscaped area :
Select the landscape features;

Parking and Roads

Parking development
Number of vehicle parking stalls:
Number of vehicle with trailer parking stalls;

Number of accessible parking stalls;
Vehicle with trailers

Vehicle

Select the parking surfaces:
Select the parking enhancements;

Play Areas

Playground development
Number of play areas:

Number of climbing walls/rocks:
Select the play area surface material type;

Site Preparation

General site preparation

Sports Facilities

Disc golf course development
Number of disc golf courses ;
Number of disc golf stations ;
Lighting provided for evening use (yes/no):

ELIGREIM.RPT October 5,2015

Project Number: 14-1143

Project Type: Development

Approval: 7/10/2015

0.00

5.34

1 new, 0 renovated

Restroom

1 new, 0 renovated

Asphalt

1760

No

0 new, 0 renovated

4.50

Drainage, Grass/turf, Trees/shrubs

36 new, 0 renovated

0 new, 0 renovated

0

5

Asphalt

Striping

1 new, 0 renovated

0 new, 0 renovated

Recycled mbber

1 new, 0 renovated

9 new, 0 renovated

No

Page:



Eligible Scope Activities

utilities

install power utilities
Select the power utilities: Power line

Install sewage system
Number of dump stations: 1 new, 0 renovated
Select the sewer utilities: Sewer line

Install stormwater system
Select the stormwater utilities: Stormwater line

Install water system
Select the water utilities: Water line

Permits

Obtain permits

Architectural & Engineering

Architectural & Engineering (A&E)

ELIGRE1M.RPT October 5,2015 Pagg.



Project Number:

Project Name:

Sponsor:

Project Manager:

Milestone Report By Project

14-1143 D

Volunteer Park Development

Selah Parks & Rec Dept

Laura Moxham

X ! Milestone Target Date Comments/Description

X Project Start 07/10/2015

X ! Cultural Resources Complete 08/01/2015 RCO has completed cultural resources
consultation with Native American

tribes and the Department of
Archaeology and Historic Preservation.
No further cultural resource

investigation is required at this time.
DAHP Log No: 072015-14-RCFB

X Design Initiated 10/01/2015

Applied for Permits 11/01/2015

1 Progress Report Submitted 12/15/2015

60% Plans to RCO 12/15/2015

SEPA/NEPA Completed 01/31/2016

All Bid Docs/Plans to RCO 01/31/2016

Bid Awarded/Contractor Hired 02/29/2016

1 Construction Started 03/31/2016 RCO must issue a Notice to Proceed

prior to any ground disturbing activities.

1 Annual Project Billing 07/31/2016

1 Progress Report Submitted 07/31/2016

RCO Interim Inspection 10/31/2016

50% Construction Complete 11/30/2016

I Progress Report Submitted 12/15/2016

1 Progress Report Submitted 07/31/2017

1 Annual Project Billing 07/31/2017

90% Construction Complete 09/30/2017

Funding Acknowl Sign Posted 10/31/2017

RCO Final Inspection 10/31/2017

Construction Complete 10/31/2017

! Agreement End Date 10/31/2017

Final Billing to RCO 12/15/2017

Final Report in PRISM 12/31/2017

1MILEST0.RPT October 05.2015 Page:



X = Milestone Complete

I = Critical Milestone

Milestone Report By Project

1MILEST0.RPT October 05,2015



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

10/27/2015 M-3

Title: Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Sign an Amendment to the City

Administrator's Employment Agreement

Thru: Donald Wayman, City Administrator

From: Dale Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: Annual savings of$ 6,135

Funding Source: Various funds

Staff Recommendation:

Approval

Bacl^round / Findings & Facts;

The City Administrator has continuing medical insurance from a previous
employer and has offered to forgo City paid medical insurance and, in lieu,

receive a $ 1,000 month increase in salary.

Recommended Motion:

I move to approve the Resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign an amendment

to the City Administrator's Employment Agreement.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Record ofall prior actions taken by the City Council and/or a City Board, City
Committee, Planning Commission, or the Hearing Examiner (where applicable)

Date: Action Taken:

3/24/2015 Resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign an Employment
Agreement with Donald Wayman for the City

Administrator position

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.



RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN AN AMENDMENT

TO THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR'S EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, the City of Seiah wishes to amend the City Administrator's employment
agreement;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
SELAH, WASHINGTON, that the Mayor be authorized to sign an amendment to the City
Administrator's employment agreement.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTON this 27'" day ofOctober, 2015.

John Gawlik, Mayor
ATTEST:

Dale E. Novobielski, Clerk Treasurer

Robert Noe, City Attomey

RESOLUTION NO.



FIRST AMENDMENT

TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

BETWEENTHE CITY OF SELAH, WASHINGTON

and DONALD WAYMAN dated March 24,2015

WHEREAS, Section 12 of the Employment Agreement between the City of Selah and
Donald Wayman dated March 24,2015 ("Agreement") provides that the Agreement may be
amended In writing by the parties;

WHEREAS, It Is the desire of the parties to amend Section 4, Compensation, of the
Agreement to make adjustments to Donald Wayman's base salary In acknowledgement that
Donald Wayman will opt out of the City's provided medical insurance;

WHEREAS, It Is also the desire of the parties to amend Section 5, Benefits, of the
Agreement to reflect the desire of the parties that Donald Wayman not be covered under the
City provided medical Insurance;

NOW, WHEREFORE, the parties wish to amend the Agreement as follows:

1. Section 4, Compensation, amended to read as follows:

Section 4. COMPENSATION

A. The Citywill pay The Employee as compensation for services a monthly
salary of $8/750i00, S9.750.00 (effective January 1.20161 and maintain such
Increases to salary as provided below. The employee will be eligible for up to
$5,000 In actual moving expenses, upon submitting a written request with
proper documentation.

B. Upon completion of satisfactory work performance and at the Mayor's
discretion, the employee's pay will be Increased up to 5% May 1, 2016 and May
1,2017.

C. At the beginning of each fiscal year, the City may increase or decrease
the salary for a cost-of-llvlng adjustment so long as all salaries of those In the
Management and Non-represented group are changed accordingly.

FIRST AMENDEMENTTO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT- 1 OF 3



D. At any time the City may increase said salary based on merit at the sole
discretion of the Mayor and City Council.

E. As the Employee Is engaged in a professional and executive capacity and
is compensated on a predetermined salary basis, the position is exempt from the
maximum hours provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act.

II. Section 5, Benefits, amended as follows:

Section 5. BENEFITS

A. The Citywill provide fringe benefits as provided to other personnel under
the provisions of the City of Selah Personnel Policies. Except that the employee
shall receive a starting credit of 80 hours of vacation leave and shall accrue
vacation leave at the rate of 18 days per year. And except that. Employee, at his
request and as soecificallv agreed upon, shall not be covered under the City's

provided medical insurance. The Employee understands that the City may, in its
sole discretion, add, alter, amend, modify, or terminate such benefits at any time
without any notice as allowed by law.

B. Expenses incurred for travel on City business shall be reimbursed per the
City's Personnel Policiesand Travel Policy.

C. The Employee will be provided with the use of a cellular telephone, and
the use of a Cityvehicle, for conducting City business.

D. The Cityshall pay an amount equal to the Employer Contribution Rate
established for PERS 3 members to either a PERS 3 account or other deferred

compensation program available to City employees.

E. The cost for professional subscriptions, and association and member dues
will be provided for within the CityAdministrator budget.

All remaining provisions of the Agreement, not subject to this FirstAmendment, shall remain in
full force and effect.

AGREED THIS day of October, 2015.

EMPLOYER - CITY OF SELAH EMPLOYEE - DONALD WAYMAN

Mayor John Gawlik Donald Wayman

FIRST AMENDEMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT - 2 OF 3



ATTEST:

Dale Novobielski, CityClerk/Treasurer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Robert F. Noe, City Attorney

FIRST AMENDEMENTTO EMPLOYMENTAGREEMENT- 3 OF 3



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

10/27/2015 N-1

Title: Ordinance Amending the 2015 Budget for the Expenditure of
Hotel/Motel Sales Tax Revenue

Thru: Donald Wayman, City Administrator

From: Charles Brown, Recreation Manager

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Approval

Fiscal Impact: $6,000

Funding Source: Fund 121 Tourism

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends that Hotel/Motel Sales Tax revenue be transferred to fund

001 General for $ 3,000.00 in support of the Selah Downtown Association and
$ 3,000 for the costs associated with theJuly 3'"'̂ community event.

Background / Findings & Facts:

The City of Selah Lodging Tax Advisory Committee approved the expenditure
of S 3,000 of Hotel/Motel Sales tax revenue to the Selah Downtown

Association for its branding project efforts which will increase tourism and
$3,000 to the General fund to help pay for costs of the July 3'̂ '' community
event.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Recommended Motion:

I move to approve the Ordinance amending the 2015 budget for the expenditure
of Hotel/Motel Sales Tax revenue.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

A GENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Record ofall prior actions taken by the City Council and/or a Cit>- Board, City
Committee^ Planning Commission, or the Hearing Examiner (where applicable)

Date: Action Taken:

5/18/2015 LTAC approved expenditures of Hotel/Motel Sales tax
revenue.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

•jT'11 (]..



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2015 BUDGET FOR THE EXPENDITURE OF
HOTEL/MOTEL SALES TAX REVENUE

WHEREAS,the City desires to amend the 2015 budget for the expenditureofHotel/Motel Sales
Tax revenue;

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH, WASHINGTON, does
ordain as follows: that the Clerk-Treasurer be authorized to amend the 2015 Budget as follows:

001 General

001.000.097.397.00.00.00 OperatingTransfers-In $ 6,000

001.000.013.513.10.49.03 Selah Downtown Association $ 3,000
001.000.071.571.20.41.06 Third of July 3,000

121 Tourism

121.000.097.597.00.00.00 Operating Transfers-Out $ 6,000

170.000.008.508.80.00.00 New Ending Unreserved Fund Balance $ 3,200

PASSED AND ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTON this 27*^ day ofOctober 2015.

ATTEST:

Dale E. Novobielski, Clerk-Treasurer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Robert Noe, City Attorney

ORDINANCE NO.

John J. Gawlik, Mayor



CITY OF SETAH
115 West loaches Avenue

Seiah, Washington 98942

Jme9, 2015

Selah Downtown Association

115 West Naches Ave

Selah, WA 98942

Phone 509-698-7328

Fax S09-69S-7338

Board of Directors,

The Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (LTAC) supports the grovrth of tourism in the Selah
Community by presenting this letter of intent to the Selah Downtown Association, who has
expressed a desire to contract services with Amett Muldrow and Associates to conduct research,
develop a brand for our community, -andto producematerials that will assist in our future
marketing efforts.

The LTAC intends to support the payment of i^nett Muldrow with an amount presented to and
approved by the board on 5/18/20.15 in the amountof $3,000.

By making this donatioiL.! anticipate that all marketingmaterials will be available for use by
their organization. The eommitt^ is very exdted to see what the firm ofAmett Muldrow can do
for our community! ' ,,- '

Sincerely, :/

Charlie Brown ^

Recreation Manager, City of Selah



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

10/27/2015 N-2

Title; Ordinance Adopting the 2005 Selah Urban Growth Area Comprehensive

Plan Amendment 2015-2 (City of Selah) as Recommended by the City of Selah
Planning Commission

Thru: Donald Wayman, City Administrator

Fbom: Thomas R Durant, Community Planner

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Approval

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Funding Source: N/A

Staff Recommendation:

Approval of both the Plan Amendment and Rezone

Background / Findings & Fads;

Attached are an Amendment of the 2005 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use

Map designation from Low Density Residential to Moderate Density
Residential and a rezone of the property to Two-Family Residential (R-2). The
Planning Commission held a public hearing on October 6, 2015 and
recommended approval of both actions.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Recommended Motion:

I move the approval of the amendment of the Comprehensive Plan Future Land
Use designation from Low Density Residential to Moderate Density Residential

and amendment of the official zoning map from One-Family Residential (R-1)
to Two-Family Residential (R-2).



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Record ofall prior actions taken by theCity Council and/or a City Board, City

Committee, Planning Commission, or the Hearing Examiner (where applicable)

Date: Action Taken:

10/6/2015 Planning Commission Public Hearing

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.



ORDINANCE

ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2005 SELAH URBAN GROWTH AREA

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 2015-2 (CITY OF SELAH) AS
RECOMMENDED BY THE CITY OF SELAH PLANNING COMMISSION

WHEREAS, the Selah City Council adopted the City ofSelah 2005 Urban Growth Area
Comprehensive Plan by Ordinance #1679, March 14,2006; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Selah Planning Commission considered plan amendment 2015-2 (City of
Selah) to change the Future Land Use designation of 0.37 acre from Low Density Residential to
Moderate Density Residential at a duly advertised public hearing on October 6,2015, where
testimony was taken from those persons present who wished to be heard; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Selah Planning Commission adopted Findings and Conclusions
recommending approval ofthe 2005 Selah Urban Growth Area Comprehensive Plan Amendment
2015-2 (City ofSelah); and,

WHEREAS, the City of Selah Council considered plan amendment 2015-2 (City ofSelah) at a
duly advertised public hearing on October 27,2015, where testimony was taken from those
persons present who wished to be heard and the Council has reviewed the Planning Commission's
recommendationofapproval and the minutes of the October 6,2015 public hearing and all
exhibits, documents and correspondence pertaining to the proposed amendment; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council adopts the Planning Commission's Findings and Conclusions by
reference and incorporates them herein as if fully set forth.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH, WASHINGTON,
ADOPTS PLAN AMENDMENT 2015-2 TO THE 2005 SELAH URBAN GROWTH AREA

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTON, this 27'" day ofOCTOBER 2015.

ATTEST:

Dale E. Novobielski, Clerk-Treasurer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Robert Noe, City Attorney

John Gawlik, Mayor



RECOMMENDED FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS

Selah Urban Area Comprehensive Plan

Future Land Use Map Amendment 15-02

Major Rezone 914.61.15-02

October 6,2015

This matter having come on for publichearing before the SeiahPlanning Commission on
October6,2015 for the purposeof an application initiatedbythe City of Selah to change the
Future Land Usedesignation of Parcel181435-13493 from Low DensityResidentialto Moderate
Density Residential and to changethe zoning from One-Family Residential (R-1) to Two Family
Residential (R-2).

Members of the Commission present at the public hearing were

Legal notification pursuant to SelahMunicipal Codewas given on August 26 and September 25,
2015.Ail persons were given the opportunityto speak for or againstthe proposed
Comprehensive Plan Amendment and major rezone.

1. Thecommission adopts the staff findings and report as to the existing use, zoning and
future land use designation of the subject and adjacent properties.

2. Ownersof adjacent landsexpressedApproval / Disapproval of the proposal.

3. The majorityof comments receivedwere in havor of / oppositionto the proposal.

4. The Planning Commission adopts the following findings from the September 9,2015 staff
report:

a. Thesite is in inan urbanized area with existing infrastructure and does not comprise
or encourage sprawl.

b. The proposal isconsistentwith mappingcriteriaand policies that encourage a
mixture of housing types.

c. The proposal is consistent with the policy of replacing nonconforming uses with
appropriate conforming uses. The existing use of the property is more conforming
with the MDR plan designationand R-2 zoningthan it iswith the current zoningand
plan designation.

d. The proposal isconsistent with the intent of Title10 and the R-2 zoningdistrict
because it has already been developed, it was developed under R-2 zoning

Page 1



standards at the time, Itconforms to existing zoning standards, the surrounding
area Is mostly built out and the Infrastructure Is now In place.

The extent to which future subdivision ofthe site Into lots ascontemplated by the
developer conforms to standards such as ^dlltating futuredevelopment and
Individual connections to municipal sewer and water systems can be addressed at
the timesuch land division Is proposed andwould nototherwise jeopardize the
appropriateness andconsistency ofthe proposed plan designation andzoning.

The adequacy of public facilities and public services required to meet(In this case)
urban needs Is evidenced by thesite and surrounding properties being fully
developed. They areserved byrequired public utilities, roads andQtyservices, and
there Is no evidence of anydeficiency that would result in impacts from the
proposed action.

The primary public need for theproposal Is based on Comprehensive Plan Policy
HSG 1.6to replace a nonconforming use with anappropriate conforming use. ItIs
the contention of thisapplication that the 2005 designation ofthe LDR land use
category Is In error because Itwas the result ofthefailure to consider the existing
use oftheproperty and theexisting and historical land use patterns In thevicinity.

Forthe same reason, publicneed Inthis case can also be characterized Inthe

negative; There Is no public purpose derived In retaining the current plan
designation and zoning given thecurrent use oftheproperty and land use patterns
Inthe vicinity.

The question ofwhether additional land isneeded forthe designation Is not
relevant because thechange In the number ofdwelling units Is notsignificant and
not a significant factor In the consideration of this proposal. Itbiinp the land use
designation Into consistency with theactual use ofthe property. The timing Is also
appropriateto correct a mapping error and resulting nonconformity.

As a mapping error, the change In drcumstances occurredpriorto the 2005
comprehensive plan update and wasapparently not realized at the time. The
property wasdeveloped to MDR density as allowed forat the time bythe R-2
zoning.

It may be possibleto Increasethe number of dwelling unitsto four and continue to
comply with the maximum allowable density of12dwelling units peracre by the
Moderate Density Residential future landusecategory. However because of the
way the existing buildings are designed. Itappearsunlikely that an additional
dwelling unit could be added.

Page 2



I. other land uses permitted in the R-2zone are either no less intensive than that

existing, or are otherwise permitted in the R-1zone.

m. The existing use and zoning of the site is consistent with that which it faces across

Speyers Roadto the northeast and also along both sides of Speyers Roadin the
vicinity. It borders lower density single femllydevelopment and zoningon rear and

side property lines to the south and west, preferable boundaries between the two
zoning and land use categoriesto the extent that there isanycompatibility issues.

n. There are no Identified compatibilityconflicts identified for establishing separate
Individual lots for the existing dwelling units on the site.

0. Suitability of the site issupported bythe existing developmentof the site, its
location Inan urbanized and developed part of the City and full range of
transportation, utilities and Cityservices at the site.

p. The proposed planamendment has minimal cumulative impactwhen combined
with the one other plan amendment application under consideration in this annual
review because while there Is a potential foran Increase In the number ofdwelling
units by one unit, such increase is considered unlikely. The proposal results in a
slight decrease in acreage designated for low density residential with a

corresponding increase in the acreage designated for moderate density residential,
the Increasein the number of units resulting from both planamendments Isno
more than two and probably less.

q. The proposed planamendment better implements applicable Comprehensive Plan
policies, corrects an obvious mapping error and addresses an identified deficiency in
the Comprehensive Plan based on abovefindings becauseit recognizes existing
developmentconsistent withexisting development patterns In the vicinity and
eliminateswhat mayotherwise be considereda nonconforming use.

r. Theproposedplanamendment does not requirechangesto Implementing
regulations in order for them to remain consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

s. No Inconsistencies with Countywide Planning Policies have been Identified.

t. The proposed plan amendment, located well inside the City Limits does not conflict
with comprehensive plans adopted by Yakima County or other cities with which

Selah has common borders or related regional issues.

Page 3



5. Additional findings adopted by the Commission based on testimony at the public hearing
and addrtiona! information from interested agencies and departments:

6. The Commission finds that the present and future needs of the community will be
adequately served andthe community as a whole will benefit ratherthan being Injured by
the proposal.

7. Environmental Review has been completed, a Determination of Nonsignificance was issued
and the Commission is satisfied that environmental review wascompleted In compliance
with Selah MunicipalCode Chapter 11.40.

8. TheCommission determines that findings to be the controlling factors in Its
deliberations on the Class 3 Use Permit.

DECISION

The Commission, based onthese findings, conclusions and controlling factors finds that the proposed
change in the Selah Urban Area Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use designation of Parcel 181435-
13493 should be changed from Low Density Residential to High Density Residential and Its zoning
changed from One Family Residential (R-1) to Two Family Residential (R-2).

Motion tqi^^TO^Deny by: Second bv Vote

Page 4



CITY OF SELAH PLANNING COMMISSION

STAFF REPORT

September 9,2015

APPLICATION; Urban Growth Area Plan Amendment 2015-2 & Major Rezone (914.61.15-02).

PROPOSAL: Amend the Future Land Use Map of the Selah Urban Growth Area Comprehensive Plan to

change the designation of a 0.37 acre parcel from Low Density Residential (LDR) to Moderate Density

Residential (MDR).Also rezone the property from One Family Residential (R-1) to Two Family Residential

(R-2].The property owner has a concurrent application to rezone the property to Planned Development

The Hearing Examiner has made a recommendation on the application, but It has not yet gone to the

City Council.

PROPONENT: The Cityof Selah has Initiated the actions that are before the Planning Commission for the

reasons given Inthis report.

PROPERTY OWNER: Carl & Candi Torkelson

LOCATION: 600 Speyers Road. On the southwest side of Speyers Road and at the southwest corner of

Speyers Road and Pear Avenue. Home Avenue Is150 feet to the south. (TaxParcel Numben 181435-

13493).

APPUCATION AUTHORITY ANDJURISDICTION: Selah Municipal Code, Chapter 10.40 (Amendments) as

It pertains to zoning map amendments and major rezones (amendment to the zoning map contingent

upon a comprehensive plan amendment).

PUBLIC FAaUTIES AND UTIUTY SERVICES: Utilities and services are fully available to this developed site.

It fronts on Speyers Road and Pear Avenue, which are both improved Citystreets.

LAND USE.ZONING & COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The site is zoned R-1, designated Low Density Residential

by the Comprehensive Plan and developed with three detached single familycondominium units at a

density of 8 dwelling units per acre.

Adjacent Properties

Location Zoning Comprehensive Plan

North R-1 Low Density Residential

East R-2 Moderate Density Residential

South R-1 Low Density Residential

West R-1 Low Density Residential

Land Use

Single family dwelling on 0.35 acre lot.

Moderate density Planned Development,

attached single-family & condo dwellings

Single family homes on 0.18 to 0.28 acre lots

Single family dwelling on 0.18 acre lot

Page 1 of 8



AGENCY NOTIFICATION & ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: A Determination of Nonsignlficance (DNS)

(971.61-64.15-09) was issued on August 26,2015 and finalized on September 9,2015. The SEPA

determination was issued for and considered both proposed comprehensive plan amendments pursuant

to the requirement of RCW 36.70A.130(2)(b)and SMC10.40.040(1) that the cumulative effects of all

proposed plan amendments be considered.

The Washington State Department of Commerce was notified as required by RCW 36.70A.106.

Commerce forwarded the notice to other State agendes. As of the date of this report, no comments

have been received.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT; The basis for the proposed comprehensive plan amendment is

that the Gty considers the Low Density Residential designation of this property by the Plan in 2005 to be

a mapping error because it did not consider the current use of the property and the land use pattern

surroundingthe property at the time. The three singlefamily residential units, developedat a density of
8 units per acre were constructed in 2004 consistent with the R-2 zoningof the property at the time. The

property was subsequently rezoned to R-1to conform to the plan designation.

In addition to the use of the property, existing factors that were not taken into account at the

time of the 2005 plan update were that the development of the site faces existingmoderate density
condominium development and MDR designated/R-2 zoningon the east side of Speyers Road.Zoning
boundaries are often better located on rear property lines than in streets where development that has

potential compatibility issues face one another.

Also, both sides of Speyers Road have developed over the years with a mixture of moderate

density development(duplexes, townhouses and apartments) that faceSpeyers Road alternatingwith
single family neighborhoods that mostly extend back away from this street

Low Density Residential

The current future land use designation is described in the comprehensive plan as:

"...provid[ing] areas of lowdensity residential development, up to 5 dwelling units per gross
acre. Clustering of dwelling units,withinthe permitted density range, isencouragedto preserve
open space, steep slopes,drainageways, etc....The predominate use will be lowdensity
residential; however, it is the intent and desire of Selah that its low density neighborhoods

develop with a mixof housing types includingsingle-family, duplexes, townhouses and multi-

familydwellings. The mix of housingtypes will be limited bythe maximum permissible density
and zoning standards will regulate development to assure compatibility^."

Moderate Density Residential

The proposed future land use designation is described by the Comprehensive Plan as follows:

'This use category provides areas of predominately moderate density residential development,
up to 12 dwelling unitsper gross acre. Ciustering of dwelling units,within the permitted density

Page 2 of 8



range, is'highly encouraged to preserve open space, steep slopes, drainage ways, etc. The

predominate use is two-family, townhouses and condominium dwellings with a mix of single-

family and multi-family residences. The mix of housing types will be limited by the maximum

permissible density and zoningstandards will regulate development to assure compatibility.As
with low density residential development, moderate density residential development willbe

served primarilyby municipal utilityservices and/or private community water and sewage

systems that are designedfor future connection to Selah's municipal system."

With respect to the existing use, the subject property is consistent with both the Low Density
and Moderate DensityResidentialfuture land use map descriptions. However, the existingdensity - 8
dwelling units per gross acre - isconsistent with Moderate Density Residential and inconsistent with
Low Density Residential.

Comprehensive Plan Goals, Policies and Objectives

Policy LUGM 3.2:Direct development to areaswhereinfrastructure (water, sewerandstreets)
iseither present, can be easily extended, or is planned to be extended.

Policy LUGM 3.3:Conserve land, energy and financial resources byminimizing urban sprawl.

Housing Goal:Encourage the availability of affordablehousing to alleconomic segments of the
population, promotea variety of residential densities and housing typesand encourage preservation of
existing housing stock.

Objective HSG1: Maintain and upgrade the character ofexisting residential neighborhoods.

Policy HSG 1.1: Discourage rezoning which would allow incremental conversion of existing
single-family dwellings to duplexes or multi-family dwellings.

Policy HSG 1.6: Replace nonconforming useswithappropriate conforming uses.

Objective HSG 2: Encourage newresidential development to approximate existing residential
densities and housing mix levels.

Policy HSG 2.1: Encourage the combined net density ofall residential development to remain at
present levels. Exceptions to thispolicy should be permitted where the developer candemonstrate that
the quality of the projectdesign, construction and amenities warrants a different housing density.

Policy HSG 2.2:Ensure codes and ordinances promote andallow fora compatible mix of
housing types in residential areas.

Objective HSG 3: Minimize the negative impacts ofmedium and high-density residential
projects onadjacent low-density residential areas, but encourage mixed use/density projects.

Objective HSG 4: Encourage new residential construction to be compatible withexisting
residential development.

Page 3 of 8



Policy HSG 4.1: Encourage developers to use private covenants and deed restrictions which

specify architectural, maintenance and landscaping standards within their development.

Most of these plan policies are neutral to this proposal because the development of the

property is existing, not new. The proposal is not inconsistent with any of them, except to the extent

that the rezoning would allow incremental conversion of existing single-family dwellings to duplexes or

muiti-famity dwellings. This is considered to be unlikely, however. The site is in an urbanized area in

which infrastructure is present and does not comprise or encourage sprawl. It is consistent with

providing for a variety of residentialdensities and housingtypes. The most relevant policy appears to be
HSG 1.6: "Replacenonconforming uses with appropriate conforming uses." As currently zoned and

designated, the use of the property may be considered non-conforming because the density exceeds
five dwelling units per acre, if the change in land use and zoning designation is otherwise considered

"appropriate", it would be consistent with that policy.

MAJOR REZONE CRITERIA: Under SMC10.40.0S0(c) the Planning Commission shall recommend

approval,approval subject to a developmentor concomitantagreement, denialof the comprehensive
plan amendment and rezone or modification of the proposal. The recommendation must include the

following considerations:

1. The extent to which the proposed amendment/major rezone is consistent with and/or

deviates from the goals, objectives, mapping criteria and policies adopted in the
comprehensive plan and intent of this title;

2. The adequacy of publicfacilities, such as roads, sewer water and other publicservices
required to meet urban or rural needs;

3. The publicneed for the proposed change. Publicneed shall mean that a valid public
purpose, for which the comprehensive plan and this title have been adopted, isserved by
the proposed application. Findings that address public need shall, at a minimum, document:

a. Whether additional land for a particular purpose is required in consideration of the

amount already providedbythe plan map designationor current zoningdistrict
within the area as appropriate; and,

b. Whether the timing isappropriate to provide additional landfor a particular use.

4. Whether substantial changes in circumstances exist to warrant an amendment to the

current designation or zone;

5. The testimony at the public hearing;

6. Thecompatibility of the proposedzone changeand associateduseswith neighboring land
uses;

Page 4 of 8



7. The suitability of the property in question for uses permitted under the proposed zoning;

8. The recommendation from interested agencies and departments.

Consistency of the Proposal with the Comprehensive Plan and the intent of SMCTitle 10

As described above, the proposal is consistent with the goals, objectives, mapping criteria and policies of

the comprehensive plan. The following findings are recommended:

1. The site is in in an urbanized area with existing infrastructure and does not comprise or

encourage sprawl.

2. The proposal is consistent with mapping criteria and policies that encourage a mixture of

housing types.

3. The proposal is consistent with the policy of replacingnonconforming uses with appropriate
conforming uses. The existing use of the property is more conforming with the MDR plan
designation and R-2zoning than it is with the current zoning and plan designation.

The intent of SMCTitle 10 is given under "Purpose" at SMC10.02.030. It Includes implementing

the comprehensive plan enacted pursuant to the GrowthManagement Act, assuringorderly
development of the cityconsistent with comprehensive plan goals and policies, encouraging orderly
growth and the most appropriate use of the land, regulating lot coverage,population density/
distribution, the location and height of structures; providing adequate light, air, sanitation and drainage;
protectingthe social and economic stability of resources and lands; reducing the menaceof public safety
resultingfrom the improper locationof homes, commerce and industry in a singlearea and otherwise
promoting the health, safety and general welfore.

The intent of the Two FamilyResidential (R-2) zoning district is to provide for single or two-

familyresidential development where servicesare available or will be extended at no public cost. It is
also the Intent to providefor an orderly transition from vacant or partiallydeveloped to singleor two-
family residential use, focilitate coordinated and collaborative public infrastructure investment; require
individual lot connections to municipal sewer and water, require development to meet urban

development standards ensuringthat uses and landdivisions facilitatefuture residential development
and extension of utilities (SMC10.14.010).

The following findings are recommended:

4. The proposal is consistent with the Intent of Title 10 and the R-2zoning district because it has

already been developed, it was developed under R-2 zoning standards at the time, it conforms

to existing zoning standards, the surrounding area is mostly built out and the infrastructure is
now in place.

Pages of 8



5. The extent to which future subdivision of the site into lots as contemplated by the developer

conforms to standards such as facilitating future development and individual connections to

municipal sewer and water systems can be addressed at the time such land divisionis proposed

and would not otherwise jeopardize the appropriateness and consistency of the proposed pian

designation and zoning.

Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services

Recommended findings:

6. The adequacy of public facilities and public services required to meet (in this case) urban needs

is evidenced bythe site and surrounding properties being fully developed. Theyare served by
required public utilities, roads and Cityservices, and there is no evidence of any deficiency that

would result in impacts from the proposed action.

Public Need for the Proposed Change

Recommended findings:

7. The primary public need for the proposal is based on Comprehensive Pian Policy HSG 1.6 to

replace a nonconforming use with an appropriate conforming use. it is the contention of this

application that the 2005 designation of the LDR land use category is in error because it was the

result of the Allure to consider the existing use of the property and the existing and historical

land use patterns in the vicinity.

8. For the same reason, public need in this case can also be characterized in the negative: There is

no public purpose derived in retaining the current pian designation and zoninggiven the current

use of the property and land use patterns in the vicinity.

9. The question of whether additional land is needed for the designation is not relevant because

the change in the number of dwellingunits is not significantand not a significantfector in the

consideration of this proposal, it bringsthe land use designation into consistencywith the actual
use of the property.Thetiming isalsoappropriate to correct a mapping error and resulting
nonconformity.

Change in Circumstances

Recommended findings:

10. As a mappingerror, the change in circumstancesoccurred priorto the 2005 comprehensivepian
update and may not have been realized at the time. The property was developed to MDR
density as allowed for at the time by the R-2zoning.

Page 6 of8



Testimony at the Public Hearing and Recommendation of Interested Agencies and Departments

The Planning Commission is required to consider the testimony received in formulating its

recommendation and may want to make additional or different findings based on this testimony. Asof

the date of this report, no agency or department comments have been received.

Compatibility of Rezone and Associated Land Uses with Surrounding Land Uses

Generally In considering rezones, it is necessary to account for all potential uses that may be permitted

including those that are the most intensive or potentially incompatible with surrounding neighborhoods.

Recommended findings are as follows:

11. it may be possible to increase the number of dwelling units to four and continue to comply with

the maximum allowable density of 12 dwelling units per acre by the Moderate Density

Residential future land use category. However because of the way the existing buildings are

designed, it appears unlikely that an additional dwelling unit could be added.

12. Other land uses permitted in the R-2zone are either no less intensive than that existing, or are

otherwise permitted In the R-1zone.

13. The existing use and zoning of the site is consistent with that which it faces across Speyers Road

to the northeast and also along both sides of Speyers Road In the vidnity. It borders lower

density single family development and zoning on rear and side property lines to the south and

west, preferable boundaries between the two zoning and land use categories to the extent that

there are any compatibility Issues.

14. There are no identified compatibility conflicts identified for establishing separate individual lots

for the existing dwelling units on the site.

Suitability of the Site for Uses Permitted Under the Proposed Zoning

Recommended finding:

15. Suitability of the site is supported by the existing development of the site, its location in an

urbanized and developed part of the Cityand full range of transportation, utilities and City

services at the site.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS: The following findings consider other factors required or typically considered

for comprehensive plan amendments.

Page 7 of8



16. The proposed plan amendment has minimal cumulative impact when combined with the one

other plan amendment application under consideration in this annual review because while

there is a potential for an increase in the number of dwelling units by one unit, such Increase Is

considered unlikely. The proposal results In a slight decrease Inacreage designated for low

density residential with a corresponding increase in the acreage designated for moderate
density residential, the increase in the number of units resultingfrom both plan amendments is
no more than two and probably less.

17. Theproposed planamendment better implements applicable Comprehensive Plan policies,
corrects an obvious mapping error and addresses an identified deficiency inthe Comprehensive
Plan based on above findings because it recognizes existing developmentconsistent with
existingdevelopment patterns in the vicinity and eliminates what mayotherwise be considered
a nonconforming use.

18. The proposed planamendmentdoes not require changes to implementing regulations In order
for them to remain consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

19. No inconsistencies with COuntywide Planning Policies have been identified.

20. The proposed plan amendment, located well Inside the City Limits does not conflictwith

comprehensive plans adopted by Yakima Countyor other cities with whichSelah has common
borders or related regional issues.

RECOMMENDATION! Staffrecommends APPROVAL of the proposed change from Low Density
Residential to Moderate Density Residential and rezoning from R-1 to R-2 andthe adoption ofthe
Findings numbered 1through 20from the staffreport insupport ofthis decision along with any
additional findings from testimony at the public hearingand any recommendationsfrom interested
agencies and departments.

Page 8 of8



CITY OF SELAH

APPLICATQN FOR ZONING CODE AMENDMENT

APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS

Date Submitted/Received By

Non-Refiandable Application Fee

She Plan drawn to scale

Vicinity Site Map with North Arrow

Completed Envhonmeiital Checklist and Checklist fee,

I.* TYPE OF ZONING CODE AMENDMENT REQUIRED

REZONE OTHER

A. If requested rezone, what is the original zoning and requested zoning (i.e. R-1 to R-2)., If requested rezone, what is the or

Ql 4-A ^rO

Comprehensive Plan Designation

B. If amendment to zoning code, what is the proposed amendment (please attach proposed
amendment to application).

: doi/ 1 ^ &incL'2. NAME OF APPLICANT

ADDRESS OF APPLICANT;. P.O. "tbecx ^

TELEPHONE: WORK^P^^U350S" HOME ^^-(.^^0-330/

3. NAME OF LEGAL PROPERTY OWNER: _ JSl^/ug ZiLCi OJodn->^
(Ifdifferent from applicant)
ADDRESS:

( Signature 0\
TELEPHONE: WORK^^^ - - 3?^ 5 HOME gD'=^ - -33?C^ 1



4. Yakima County Assessor's office Parcel No. forPropertvfsi

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY:

^ ^lA^-YTVQP

5. SUMMARY OF PROPOS^ rezone or zoning code amendment
: \^3P- 4^ J\jy-rvg

LOuJ C\0/\^jA^^Ji:\-O A^lk iVw tKX A-o
.^cxtoNe^ Afio A n AAg NA



PRELIMINARY PLANNED DEVELOPMENT
OF

SPEYERS COURT
IN THE SW 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 35. TOWNSHIP 14 NORTH RANGE 18 EAST WM

CITY OF SELAH, YAKIMA COUNTY, WASHINGTON

I. TBTM. tKA OF PRCWhtD SUGSmSCN B MOU ta
T/DJU tans

I mOMTUK Of LUB CDVSWOE BT IMMQenS « UX

* PPieiEB HBgW Mt BBTOM. MO HPi
ilK.'JSH " eouwctHHwin iw«a«lD SDMCB MAVt tOX MSIlWD
(po**. SEW*. «ia. eic..).

* iJUnSS'Jiff's S!®*™ "w uPBMous9MFM& MU. K REnMED CK snt

& susw McrstTr tut muowb ncraim xrc zace
«-'• wowmws MOtlH Of PEAR *VB« JS jSw^
£« ffltw R0*9 ARE XBXtD H

*• 2!? PARKMC USA URUNTIHL K ocaailo CN k nw. put iup or promo
fOH w WE KNtiapioff eovotwn "vmu

! \ %

\ %
\ \ ^ ^

: V \ ^

' ^ '
acRts.' . \ \

PARK AR£

\ \
PARca. m. \ \
nems-mn \

iKAL OEBCRPTKM

W I or WAT COrTAM SUST PUT PCTMPII •»«««» iunm
FIX NO TWTa Asxnscr taimaSStx •SeewA

VKNTY UAP

10T» I 101 JlUmHSI XOt I PARDNO | MOnOUl IIMPUVKIU9
UBU ENvnow luuws sFtant iarbspau Anasan.

rr. son. Totfr icr san.

4MI 7a l&R i IXlft

on Ttt 2L7X I U7|

fn 7a MX 7 Utt

SURVCYOR/ENO^EEn
RKWRfi L HIM, PIS
pis> DCHonZ ft suR\enNe
1130 wisr iweou wdm
TARBU. HORNSRW IfttQ]

PI M Jft BacEnNo-suRvrrwo-nMwie
L 9 MX TOO KBT IMCSW AVZMC

^ YAKHA. WAMWrON (SKQ
laOB OT-WRO

fflgJiWW PLAJWEP BCVELOPAWVT [PR— Rn OIL
PAKD. Na iaiA3s - 1SAU yiR/aoiA

—PSEPARED POR M n. lAmR

OWrCR/DEVELOPER
GUI TMKSSSN
lORKO^ cotsnacnoN
PA MU iM
KMi mSHNOION RRRAZ

is* 1/4. W1/A, SEt SS. T-1A R R-ti tWU



P.O. Box 292

Selah, Washington 98942
Phone: (509) 697-3305

Fax: (509) 697-3504
torkelson@fairpoint.nct

C-arl Torkelson
CeU: (509) 945-0133

Candi Torkelson
Cell: (509) 961-7656

TORKELSON
Construction, Inc. !Why Pay $1000'sMore? Buy BuilderDirectl

February 17, 2015

City of Selah
Planning Commission

113 West Naches Avenue

Selah, WA 98942

RE: 600 A, B, CSpeyers Road - Parcel #181435-13493

To Whom It May Concern:

Iam requesting that mycomprehensive plan amendment be sent to the Planning Commission
forrecommendation, then to the City Council forfinal approval. After this Iwould like my
proposed planned development to go back to the Hearing Examinerfor reconsideration.

Thank you,

Carl Torkelson

Why Pay$1000i More? Buy BuilderDirect!
Builder reserves the right to change floor plan or elevations



Yakima County GIS

Yakima County GIS - Washington

Land Information Portal

13029
S PLAC

34471 |u U
IMBJ

iaa» iiU7 :i

paAO^ Adp. NO

24479 $AGE AVE.

134SS

134U •

M441

•.DBAUBF
2UiA

^MEr^ 1^2

§ §
jmM24040 .

31C01 H0 4E

31481 131008

)1467 31C0?

110-1 91012

S1fh3

11018 31C1S m.rpE

91023

fPrint Maol

fClosa Maol

^UASi*- Poi>i:c.
Op€fi

iKm 13910

OUil/L COUftT

lasM

nuci'A*

13*>08

nrMnSJ 7A073B9

-lem&Ave-^

[2]Ciri],4,-i>eM;/y
1M77 IMJJ 1 tS«S /
CT'T] fiuii

piSlryfySTOCO

1S0t7

13014

13480

Page 1 of 1

i44a<

i4wr

^\"-SUNRiSE

14ASD

14400

14402

14013

14013

14037
14030

t4400

140t0 / J*

1401>

41010

41SB 41&S7

<1037

4 ion

•*4147% « <1474

41482 s a* 41478 " 41473

41477 " 41472

42450 <3448 <7448

4DD
434&1 41471

SICQI
91020 434*9

91024 424424344i

1 41X0* t

AloPg*»j« ?LEASAMX toAn

,lTi
/ ^iT i

4JW
2

W-BQ 1
B&'BQ

tun

43468

Map Center; Range:!

1City Limfift
ISecJiortt

(»4S

t Township:14 Seedon:3S

WWW.YAKIMAP.COM
Yeklma County GIS

12S N 2nd Stfott
YsMme. WA 98901

(909)574-2992

Pldh ^/TvrTvJfKrn/
MAP AND PARCEL DATAARE BELIEVED TO BE ACCURATE. BUT ACCURACY IS NOT CUARANTEEO. T>I>S IS NOT A LEGAL
DOCUMENT AND SHOULD NOT BE SUSSTTrUTEO FOR A TITLE SEARCH, APPRAISAL, SURVEY, FLOOOPLAIN OR ZONING
VERIFICATION

Ccpyrigll (C) YsKsra Countr GIS

PrmMOn BIS/%1S2ZSI7PM

http://yakimap.com/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esriniap?name=YakGISH&Cmd=PrintMap&L... 8/5/2015



I

rJ

9-
•^e

K vjaT

•¥-s '•r

" t. '9
ISfeJ-'
ii#TTd?

-w

— V

Sia 1.s'","fe

•3^.

i'

-1 •

>•'
'WZ

imr

«-

J-
6i^>'

PLAN AMENDMENT 2015-02

-vsi

IfV
V

\r-'l :|

i
4

r-L

•*=•

"5'-

V V

A
—

Is

!'ij±!rT^

S*H

fp
Pslr^lIL *

X£j < J •

» iLi ^

it

:Lii^.fM

SCALE: 1" = 400'

MODERATE DENSITY RESIDENTIAL AREAS ON SPEYERS ROAD



STATE OF WASHINGTON

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
1011 Phmt Sveet SE •POfiar 42525 ' Otympia, Washington 9S504'2525 * (360)725-4000

ww/^.commBfze.wa.gov

August 11,2015

Thomas Duranl

City Planner
City of Selah
222 S Rushmore Road

Selah, Washington 98942

Dear Mr. Durant:

Thank you for sending the Washington State Department of Commerce (Commerce) the following materials as
required under RCW 36.70A.106. Please keep Uiis letter as documentation that you have met this procedural
requirement.

City of Selah - Proposed amendments to the future land use map changing 0.37 acre parcel from low
density residential to moderate density residential land 0.18 acre parcel from moderate density
residential to high density residential. These materials were received on August 11, 2015 and
processed with the Material ID # 21521.

We have forwarded a copy of this notice to other state agencies.

Ifthis submitted material is an adopted amendment, then please keep this letter as documentation that you
have met the procedural requirement under RCW 36.70A.106.

Ifyou have submitted this material as a draft amendment, then final adoption may occur no earlier than
October 10, 2015. Please remember to submit the final adopted amendment to Commerce within ten (10)
days of adoption.

If you have any questions, please contact Growtii Management Services at
reviewteam@commerce.wa.gov, or call Dave Andersen (509) 434-4491.

Sincerely,

Review Team

Growth Management Services



Department of Commerce
Innovation is in our nature.

Notice of Intent to Adopt Amendment
60 Days Prior to Adoption

Indicate one (or both, if applicable);

X Comprehensive Plan Amendment
• Development Regulation Amendment

Pursuant to ROW 36.70A-106, the following jurisdiction provides notice ofintent to adopt a
proposed comprehensive plan amendment and/or development regulation amendment under
the Growth Management Act

Jurisdiction: City of Selah

Mailing Address: 222 S. Rushmore Road, Selah, WA 98942

Date: August 11, 2015

Contact Name: Thomas R Durant

Title/Position: City Planner

Phone Number: (509) 698-7365

E-maii Address:

Brief Description of the
Proposed/Draft Amendment:
If this draft amendment is provided to
supplement an existing 60-day notice
already submitted, then please provide
the date the original notice was
submitted and the Commerce l^aten'al
ID number located In voiir Cnmmeme

acknowledgement letter.

Example: Proposed amendment to...

Annual amendments to Future Land Use Map
changing 0.37 acre parcel from Low Density
Residential to Moderate Density Residential and
0.18 acre parcel from Moderate Density
Residential to High Density Residential.

Is this action part of the
scheduled review and update?
GMA requires review every 8 years
under ROW 36.70A. 130(4)-(e).

Yes;

No: JL

Public Hearing Date: Planning Board/Commission: September 15, 2015
Council/County Commission; October 13, 2015

Proposed Adoption Date: October 13, 2015

REQUIRED: Attach or Include a copy ofthe proposed amendment text ordocument(s).
We do not accept a website hyperlink requiring us to retrieve extemal documents.
Jurisdictions must submit the actual document{s) to Commerce. If you experience
difficulty, please contact reviewteam@commerce.wa.Qov.

Rev 03/2015



U6A Plan Amendment #2015-1

905 W. Fremont Avenue, Parcel #181435-31024

Change the Future Land Use designation of 0.18 acre parcel from Moderate Density Residential (MDR)

to High Density Residential (HDR). Applicationmade by property owner.

UGA Plan Amendment IK015-2

SOOSpeyers Road, Parcel #181435-13493

Change the Future Land Use designation of 0.37 acre parcel from LowDensity Residential (LDR) to

Moderate Density Residential (MDR). Amendment is being initiated by the City based on mapping error.

At the time of adoption, Future Land Use mapping failed to account for the existing use of the property,

its orientation to MDR designated and developed property across Speyers Road and that both sides of

Speyers Road Is characterized by moderate density residential development.



Yakima County GIS - Washington

Land Information Portal

13029

I 2 "\
1M12

Pobl'c

SfiACt.

Moitnh

i

" I ij' I'
3i}l sicoin

s s

314ei |̂l1flQ8 § §
I14C JtOOT I

p, t.

11011 S1912 ^ ^

IBI* J1C13 I

M010 »1fl10 --

V" jian i f 5 $
— I

"""'U=o „«j S I
sia< - ~

a K s Q

I I 6 8
« O • o

j I 4im

42COS 43004

^ cocnzi
W71 1}<r} IM71

V l-"l "J

lemeAve

4:<i« 4MSg ^ U4M M7
3
o

«Oie <1014 '

<301 1<0I< 4,^ 11S37

41015 4100} ^^2!
}• 4'M»

41019 413U

JmUmI I lE 42<j0 *2444 42444 X X 42401

I \ADD m-3. rZT
«4j4J445 424« ijai 'I * ' 11 '

14 I ' 47439 42494 |C4»3]1.^7 U, ^ I I , ,
' Pe^vj'-^y /<gji<!ry?^l

"Oj" •'41473 • 41474

'""a a41474 g " 41479
114,47J ^ a 4,4^

V " 11
\ \ 41474 41471

f 44So* 4
.1

ISI4M J143S1
J I I §'»> j 418)1

1 I' !• Lfe»cry«a I I i^l l-Mhl I hz
UapCenler Range:18 Tovmshlp:14 Section'.35

CtyLtmii
Section*

4.«i J j4,9„
»• 4 1 II 4,

fW.
OeV"/

Yakima County QIS
128 N 2nd Straat

Yakima, WA 98801
1809)574-2992

(j614 Pkh ::f^ZOir-Z. ""'""•"'Fat
Foal 200

MAT ANDPARCB-IUTAMtEBBJEVai TOBE ACCURATE. Bl/rACCUR*CYIS NOTGUAftAKTEEO. THISIS NOTA LECAl
OOCWENTANOSWULOHOTeESUSSTITUTEOFORATTTlE SEARCH,APPRAISAL,SURVEY FLOOOPIAW OR ZONING
VERIFICATION

Cepyr^ (C)Yeuma Cartf CIS

PrinlcdOn 8)5/201522517PU

http://yakimap.com/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?naine=YakGISH&Cnid=PrintMap&L.,. 8/5/2015



Final

Determination of Nonsignificance

1. Description ofProposal: 2015 Annual ComprehensivePlan Amendmentsand major
rezone.

Proposed2005 UGA Plan Amendment 2015-1: Carl & Candi Torkelson, change the
Future Land Use designation of0.18 acre parcel at 905 Fremont Avenue from
Moderate Density Residential (MDR) to High Density Residential (HDR).

Proposed 2005 UGA Plan Amendment 2015-2: City initiated plan amendment to
change the Future Land Use designation ofa 0.37 acre parcel at 600 Speyers Road
from Low Density Residential (LDR) to Moderate Density Residential (MDR) and
rezone initiatedby the City to change the zoning from One Family Residential (R-1)
to Two Family Residential (R-2).

2. Proponent: Selah Planning Department
222 S. Rushmore Road

Selah, WA 98942

3. Location of Proposal including street address, if any: 905 Fremont Avenue: North
side ofFremont Avenue about 100 feet east ofN. lO"* Street (Yakima County Parcel
Number 181435-31024). 600 Speyers Road: SW comer ofSpeyers Road and Pear
Avenue. (Yakima County Parcel Number 181435-13493).

4. Lead Agency: City of Selah

5. The lead agency for this proposal has determined that it will not have a probable
significant adverse impact on the environment. An Environmental Impact Statement
(EIS) is not required under RCW 43.21C.030(2)(c). This decision was made afrer
review ofa completed environmental checklist and other information on file with the
lead agency. This information is available to the public on request.

This DNS is issued under WAC 197-11-340(2); there is no further comment period
on it.

6. Appeals: You may appeal this determinationto the Selah City Coimcilby filing a
written appeal with the required $300.00 filing fee at the Selah Public Works
Department,222 S. Rushmore Road no later than 5:00 p.m. on September 16,2015.
You should be prepared to make specific factual objections. Contact the Planning
Departmentat 698-7365 to read or ask about the procedures for SEPA appeals.

7. Responsible Official: Donald C. Wayman

8. Position / Title: City Administrator



201S Annual Comprehensive Plan Amendments
DNS

Page 2

9. Address: 222 S. Rushmore Road, Selah, Washington 98942

10. Date: Septeniber^2015

11. Signature.

itenibCT^2015



ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST

INTRODUCTION;
The State Environmental Poliqr Act (SEPA), Chapter43^IC, requires all governmental agencies tocoosider theenvironmental impacts ofa proposal before making
decisions. Anenvironmental impact statement (EIS) must beprepared forallproposals withprobable significant adverse impacts on thequality of theenvironment
Thepurpose ofthischeddistis to provide infoimation tohelpyouandtheagency identify impacts from yourproposal (andto reduce oravoid impacts (ramthe
proposal ifitcan be done) and tohelp the agency decide wh^eran EIS isrequi^

Thisenvironmental diecklist asksyouto describe somebasic information aboutyourproposal. Oovcnunental agencies usethis diecklist to detenninewhether the
environmemal fanpacb ofyourprtgwsal aresignificant, requiring preparation ofanEIS. Answer thequestions briefly wilh themostprecise infbimatton known or
the best description you can.

You mustanswer each question accurately andcarefiilly tothebest ofyour knowledge. Inmost cases you should heabletoanswer thequestions from your own
observations or project plans without the need to hire experts. Ifyou r^lydo not know the answer, or ifaquestion does not apply to your proposal, write "do not
know* or "doesnot apply". Complete answersto the questions nowmayovoidunnecessary delayslater.

Some questions askaboutgovernmental regulations, such aszoning, shorelines, andlandmark designations. Answer thesequestions ifyoucan.Ifyouhave problems
Ihegovernmental agenciescan assist you.

The checklist questions apply toallparts ofyour proposal even ifyouplan todothem over a period oflime orondifferent parcels of land. Attach any additional
infomiation thatwill help describe your proposal oritsenvironmental eflecls. The agency towhich you submit thischecklist may askyou toexplain your answers or
provideadditiooal information reasonablyrelatedto determiningif theremay be significantadverseImpacts.

Complete thechecklist fornonproject proposals eventhough questions maybeanswered "doesnotapply". In ADDmON,complete IheSUPPLEMENTAL SHEET
FOR NONPROJECT ACTIONS(part D).

Fornonproject actions therefhtence inthechecklist to thewords "project applicant" and"property ofsite"should beread as"proposaT, "proposer", and"affected
geographic area", respectively.

A. BACKGROUND (Attach additional sheets ifnecessary)

1. Name of proposed project, if applicable:

2015 Annual Comprehensive Plan Amendments

2. Name of Applicant:

Selah Planning Department

3. Address and phone number of applicant and contact person:

222 S. Rushmore Road, Selah, WA 98942
(509) 698-7365
Thomas R. Durant, Community Planner

4. Date checklist prepared:

August 24, 2015



5. Agency requiring checklist:

City of Selah

6. Proposed timing or schedule (including phasing, if applicable):

Planning CommissiGn will consider theamendments at a public hearing currently scheduled
for September 15,2015 and its recommendation is scheduled to beconsidered by the City
Councilon October 13. 2015. Ifapproved, the new amendments would be in effect soon after.

7. Do youhave anyplans for future additions, expansion, or further activity related to or connected
with this proposal? Ifyes, explain.

The owner of the Speyers Road property intends to subdivide it into lots.

8. List any environmental information you know about thathas been prepared, orwill be prepared,
directly related to this proposal

Environmental review has been conducted for a pending rezone of the Speyers Road property
to Planned Developmentand its subsequent subdivision into three lots. A Determination of
Nonsignificance was Issued by the City on July 17,2014. The SEPA checklist prepared for
that action has been reviewed and incorporated intothis checklist.

9. Do you know whether applications are pending for governmental approvals orother proposals
directly affecting theproperty covered by yourproposal? Ifyes, explain.

Applications for rezone ofthe Speyers Road property to Planned Development and a
preliminary platto subdivide it into three lots is pending. The applications have been
considered by the Hearing Examiner and a recommendation issued to the City Council which
has notyet been acted on it. The proponent has submitted a new application for Planned
Development rezoning that requests reconsideration ofthe application by the Hearing
Examiner.

10. Listanygovernment approvak or permits that will beneeded foryourproposal, ifknown.

Recommendation by the Planning Commission and adoption by theCity Council required
before these amendments become effective.

Review by the Washington State Department of Commerce.

Subsequentdevelopment ofthe two parcels in this application include approval ofa Planned
Development rezone and preliminary and final plat (or short plat) for the property on Speyers
Road.



11. Give brief^ complete description of your proposal, including the proposed uses and the size of the
project and site. There are several questions later in this checklist that ask you to describe certain
aspects ofyour proposal. You do not need to repeat those answers on this page.

Two separate amendments of the Future Land Use Map of the Selah Comprehensive Plan are
proposed:

Change the future land use designation of a 0.37 acre parcel from Low Density Residential
(LDR) to Moderate Density Residential (MDR) and change its zoning from R-1 (Single Family
Residential) to R-2 (Two Family Residential). This change has been initiated bythe City
because it appears that its designation of LDR was a mapping error and did not account for
the use of it and other similarproperties along Speyers Road. The propertyowner has applied
to have it rezoned to Planned Development and to subdivide it into three lots.

Change the future land use designation of a 0.18 acre parcelfrom Moderate Density
Residential (MDR) to High Density Residential (HDR).

12. Location of the proposaL GivesufBcient infonnation for a person to understand the precise
locationofyour proposed project, includinga street address, if any, and section,township,and
range, Ifknown. Ifa proposal would occur over a range of area, provide the range or boundaries
of the site(s).Provide a legal description, site plan, vicinity map, and topographic map, if
reasonahfy available.While you should submit any plans required by the agency,you are not
required to duplicate maps or detailed plans submitted with any permit applications related to
this checklist.

The address of the property proposed for re-designation/rezoning from LDR/R-1 to MDR/R-2
is 600 Speyers Road. It Is at the southwest comer of Speyers Road and Pear Avenue. Yakima
County Parcel Number Is 181435-13493.

The address of the property proposed for re-designation from MDR to HDR Is 905 W. Fremont
Avenue. Itis on the north side of Fremont Avenue, about 100feet east of N. lo"^ Street.
Yakima County Parcel Number Is 181435-31024.

Both parcels are in Section 35. Township 14 N., Range 18 E.W.M.

13. Taxation parcel numbers(s): See response above

TO BE COMPLETED BY APPLICANT EVALUATION FOR AGENCY

USE ONLY
B. ENVIRONMENTAL ELEMENTS (Attach additional sheets ifnecessary)

1. Earth

a. General description ofthe site (circle one): ^at,jroUing, billy,
steep slopes, mountainous, other ^—<



b. What is the steepest slope on the site (approximate percent slope)?

2%

c. What general typesof soils are found on the site (for example, clay,
sand, gravel, peat, muck)? Ifyou know the classification of
agricultural soils, specify them and note any agricultural land of
long-term commercial significance and whether the proposal
results in removing any of these soils.

NRCS soil classifications are Ritzviile silt loam and Selah silt loam. The
Selahsilt loam is classified as prime farmland. None ofthe land in the City
Limits is designated agricultural land of long-term commercial significance.
These amendments should not result in the removal of these soils.

d. Are there surface indications or history of unstable soils in the immediate
vicinify? Ifso, describe.

No.

e. Describe the purpose,type, total area, and approximate quantitiesand
total affectedarea of any filing, excavation and gradingproposed.
Indicate source of fill.

Based on the existing development onthese parcels, very little, if any
grading and excavation would be expected. Both parcels are fully developed,
although the construction of new buildings is possible on the Fremont
Avenue site.

f. Coulderosion occur as a result of clearing, construction, or use?
If so, generally describe.

There is a potential for erosionfrom clearing, construction or use.

g. About what percentof the sitewill be covered with impervious surfaces
after project construction (for example, asphalt or buildings)?

Lot coverage of the Speyers Road site is 14% (buildings only). Onthe
Fremont Avenue site it is 21%. The lotcoverage standard of the R-2zone is
maximum 50% consisting of principal and accessory structures. Forthe R-3
zone, it is 80%and includes parking area as well as principal and accessory
structures.


































































































	2015_10_23_16_20_00
	2015_10_23_16_51_38
	2015_10_23_16_59_38
	2015_10_23_17_05_17
	2015_10_23_17_04_27

